VITAL and HEALTH STATISTICS DATA FROM THE NATIONAL HEALTH SURVEY

PROPERTY OF THE PUBLICATIONS BRANCH EDITORIAL LIBRARY

Types of Injuries Incidence and Associated Disability

United States - July 1965 - June 1967

Statistics on the incidence of injuries by measures of effect of injury, type of injury, geographic region, residence, family income, educational attainment, color, chronic limitation of activity and mobility, living arrangements, class of accident, calendar quarter, sex, and age; and associated days of restricted activity and bed disability. Based on data collected in household interviews during July 1965-June 1967.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE Public Health Service

Health Services and Mental Health Administration

Washington, D.C.

October 1969



Public Health Service Publication No. 1000-Series 10-No. 57

For sale by the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office Washington, D.C., 20402 - Price 60 cents

NATIONAL CENTER FOR HEALTH STATISTICS

THEODORE D. WOOLSEY, Director

PHILIP S. LAWRENCE, Sc.D., Associate Director OSWALD K. SAGEN, PH.D., Assistant Director for Health Statistics Development WALT R. SIMMONS, M.A., Assistant Director for Research and Scientific Development

ALICE M. WATERHOUSE, M.D., Medical Gonsultant

JAMES E. KELLY, D.D.S., Dental Advisor EDWARD E. MINTY, Executive Officer HARGERY R. CUNNING HAM, Information Officer

DIVISION OF HEALTH INTERVIEW STATISTICS

ELIJAH L. WHITE, Director ROBERT R. FUCHSBERG, Deputy Director RONALD W. WILSON, Chief, Survey Methods Branch GERALDINE A. GLEESON, Chief, Analysis and Reports Branch

COOPERATION OF THE BUREAU OF THE CENSUS

Under the legislation establishing the National Health Survey, the Public Health Service is authorized to use, insofar as possible, the services or facilities of other Federal, State, or private agencies.

In accordance with specifications established by the National Health Survey, the Bureau of the Census, under a contractual arrangement, participates in most aspects of survey planning, selects the sample, collects the data, and carries out certain parts of the statistical processing.

Public Health Service Publication No. 1000-Series 10-No. 57 Library of Congress Catalog Card Number 75-601415

CONTENTS

| Introduction | 1 |
|---|----|
| Source and Limitations of the Data | 1 |
| Measures of Effect of Injury | 4 |
| Incidence of Injuries by Type | 4 |
| Sex and Age | 4 |
| Selected Characteristics of Injured Persons | 6 |
| Seasonal Variation | 9 |
| Class of Accident | 9 |
| Disability Days Associated With Injuries | 9 |
| Detailed Tables | 12 |
| Appendix I. Technical Notes on Methods | 38 |
| Background of This Report | 38 |
| Statistical Design of the Health Interview Survey | 38 |
| General Qualifications | 39 |
| Reliability of Estimates | 39 |
| Guide to Use of Relative Standard Error Charts | 41 |
| Appendix II. Definitions of Certain Terms Used in This Report | 47 |
| Terms Relating to Persons Injured | 47 |
| Terms Relating to Chronic Conditions | 47 |
| Terms Relating to Disability | 48 |
| Terms Relating to Class of Accident | 49 |
| Demographic Terms | 50 |
| Appendix III. Questionnaire | 52 |
| Probe Questions | 52 |
| Condition Pages | 53 |

IN THIS REPORT statistics are presented on the incidence of injuries involving either medical attention or reduced daily activity during July 1965-June 1967 in the civilian, noninstitutional population. Information is presented for eight broad categories of injury which are considered to be reported in health interviews with reasonable accuracy. The eight types of injury are distributed by measures of effect of the injury, geographic region, residence, family income, educational attainment, color, chronic limitation of activity and mobility, living arrangements, seasonal variation in incidence of injuries, class of accident, sex, and age. Data are also presented on the short-term disability days of restricted activity and bed disability associated with these injuries.

During July 1965-June 1967 there was an average annual incidence of 51.2 million injuries of which 17.7 million were lacerations and abrasions. The next most frequent type of injury was contusions, with 7.7 million such injuries. The total number of injuries caused current short-term disability of some 323.7 million days of restricted activity and 88.5 million days in bed, or an average duration per injury of 6.3 days of restricted activity and 1.7 days in bed. The average duration per injury was longest for fracture of the femur with 60.6 days of reduced activity and 24.0 days spent in bed.

| SYMBOLS | |
|--|-----|
| Data not available | |
| Category not applicable | ••• |
| Quantity zero | - |
| Quantity more than 0 but less than 0.05 | 0.0 |
| Figure does not meet standards of reliability or precision | * |

TYPES OF INJURIES INCIDENCE AND ASSOCIATED DISABILITY

Charles S. Wilder, Division of Health Interview Statistics

INTRODUCTION

During July 1965-June 1967 an estimated average annual incidence of some 51.2 million injuries involving either medical attention or reduced daily activity occurred among the civilian, noninstitutional population of the United States. The incidence rate was 26.8 injuries per 100 persons per year. These injuries were experienced by an estimated 48.5 million persons. Thus, a maximum of 2.8 million persons, or 5.7 percent of the persons injured, had more than one injury per accidental event. These estimates exclude minor injuries that did not require the services of a medical doctor or result in reduction of activity for as much as 1 day.

The annual estimates presented in this report are based on information collected in household interviews by the Health Interview Survey during the 24 months ending in June 1967. The injuries include those sustained in accidents and in other mishaps, such as effects of exposure to the elements, for example, sunburn.

An earlier report from the National Center for Health Statistics showed average annual incidence rates by type of injury for the period July 1957-June 1961 (Series 10, No. 8). The incidence rate during that period was 27.8 injuries per 100 persons per year, slightly higher than the current rate of 26.8.

The major emphasis in the present report is placed on the incidence of eight categories of in-

jury which occurred during July 1965-June 1967. These broad groups of injuries are considered to be reported in the interview with reasonable accuracy. Incidence rates are presented for a number of characteristics of the persons sustaining injury. Where the characteristics are directly comparable with those in the earlier report, comparison has been made.

Two related reports in preparation, covering the same time period—July 1965-June 1967—will present information on: (1) the number and rate of persons injured by various characteristics and, (2) the number and rate of impairments resulting from injury.

SOURCE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE DATA

The information contained in this publication is derived from household interviews conducted by the Health Interview Survey in a probability sample of the civilian, noninstitutional population of the United States. The sample is designed so that interviews are conducted during every week of the year. During the 104-week period from July 1965 through June 1967, the sample was composed of approximately 84,000 households containing about 268,000 persons living at the time of the interview.

A description of the design of the survey, the methods used in estimation, and general qualifications of the data obtained from surveys is presented in appendix I. Since the estimates shown in

this report are based on a sample of the population rather than on the entire population, they are subject to sampling error. Therefore, particular attention should be paid to the section entitled "Reliability of Estimates." Sampling errors for most of the estimates are of relatively low magnitude. However, where an estimated number or the numerator or denominator of a rate or percentage is small, the sampling error may be high. Charts of relative sampling errors and instructions for their use are shown in appendix I.

Certain terms used in this report are defined in appendix II. Some of the terms have specialized meanings for the purpose of the survey. For example, the current injuries discussed here are those conditions of the type classified to the nature of injury code numbers N800-N999 in the International Classification of Diseases and which have lasted less than 3 months. In addition to fractures, burns, and so forth, commonly thought of as injuries, the category also includes effects of exposure (e.g., sunburn), poisonings, and adverse reactions to immunizations.

Information about injuries was obtained from the illness-recall questions illustrated in appendix III. Further information as to nature, cause, onset, disability days, and other items was obtained about each injury on the Condition Pages and is also shown in appendix III.

Annual estimates of the incidence of injuries are based on injuries occurring in the 2-week period prior to the week of interview. Annual estimates of days of disability due to current injury are derived from the number of disability days experienced during the 2-week-reference period and include all such days reported, even if the injury causing the disability occurred between 2 weeks and 3 months prior to the interview week and was still bothering the person during the 2week-reference period. However, the number of disability days due to current injuries excludes those days due to the present effects of injuries occurring prior to the 3-month period since residual effects of these earlier injuries are classified as chronic impairments.

As mentioned earlier, the injuries referred to in this report are current injuries which have required medical attention or caused reduction of usual activities for at least a day. Since the survey includes data only on persons alive at the time of the household interview, injuries experienced and disability incurred during the 2-week period by persons who died prior to the interview are excluded from the statistics. Also excluded is the injury experience of persons who were not members of the civilian, noninstitutional population at the time of the interview. However, current disability days caused by injuries lasting less than 3 months which were sustained while a person was institutionalized or a member of the Armed Forces are included in the estimates if the person had become a household member by the time of the interview.

Eight types of injury plus a residual group are presented in this report. A list of these categories with corresponding code numbers from the International Classification of Diseases (1955 Revision) is shown in table A. It will be noted that a group of rubrics included in N800-N999 are not shown in the list of code numbers. These are: N871, N886-N888, N896-N898, N995, N999.3-N999.5. The conditions represented by these rubrics are enucleation of eye, traumatic amputation of extremity or portion thereof, and complications of trauma. For the purposes of the survey, enucleation of eye and traumatic amputation are coded as impairments rather than as current injuries. The complications of injury are not coded, but the original injury is included in the incidence of current injuries.

The cortent of several of these groups needs further explanation. The group, skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c., does not include all injuries involving the head. Distributed within the remaining categories are fracture of the face bones (N802), dislocation of jaw (N830), laceration and abrasion of eye and face (N870, N872, N879, N904, N905, N907, N910), contusions of eye and face (N920, N921), foreign body involving head (N930-N932), and burns of head or face (N940, N941, N946, N948) (table A). The category, adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures, includes, for the most part, adverse reactions to vaccinations. inoculations, and transfusions, as well as complications of nontherapeutic and therapeutic medical and surgical procedures. These inclusions should be kept in mind in interpreting the data. Adverse effects often result from hypersensitivity of the individual to a properly administered therapeutic or prophylactic product. Therefore, it is not surprising that a very high proportion of these effects (67 percent) occur among children under the age of 17 years—an age interval during which vaccinations

Table A. Percent of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury according to type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

| | | Avoraça | Measures of effect of injury | | | |
|--|--|---|---------------------------------|-----------------------|------------------------|--|
| Type of injury | International Classification of Diseases code number (1955 revision) | annual incidence of current injuries in thousands | Medically attended | Acti restr inju | vity icting ries | |
| | | | injuries | Total | Bed dis- abling | |
| | | | Percent of | total | number | |
| All injuries | | 51,243 | 86.6 | 54.7 | 23.5 | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, not elsewhere classified | N800, N801, N803, N850- N856 | 3,053 | 91.0 | 49.0 | 28.7 | |
| Other fractures and dislocations | N802, N804- N839 | 5,252 | 95.4 | 69.5 | 37.4 | |
| Fracture of femur Other fractures | N820, N821 N802, N804- N819, N822- | 107 | 100.0 | 100.0 | 83.2 | |
| Dislocations Sprains and strains | N829 N830-N839 | 4,090 1,054 | 97.0 88.9 | 68.4 70.7 | 36.3 37.0 | |
| of back Other sprains and strains | N846, N847 N840-N845, | 2,725 | 83.9 | 74.3 | 40.3 | |
| Lacerations and abrasions | N848 N870, N872- N885, N890- | 6,717 | 79.0 | 70.8 | 24.4 | |
| Contusions | N995, N900- N918 N920-N929 N940-N949 | 17,655 7,656 2,233 | 90.6 79.2 86.5 | 43.7 54.1 40.3 | 14.7 24.2 16.1 | |
| medical/surgical procedures All other current injuries | N997, N998, N999.0-N999.2 N860-N869. | 2,176 | 82.2 | 62.7 | 37.6 | |
| - | N930-N936, N950-N994, N996 | 3,777 | 85.8 | 52.6 | 22.3 | |
| Poisonings Other current injuries | N960-N979 N860-N869, N930-N936, N950-N959, N980-N996, | 942 | 93.2 | 34.4 | 13.9 | |
| | N996 | 2,835 | 83.3 | 58.6 | 25.1 | |

and inoculations are most frequent. As would be expected from the nature of many of these cases and from the age distribution, the average duration of disability is lower than for most other types of injuries.

MEASURES OF EFFECT OF INJURY

The incidence of acute illnesses and injuries presented in Health Interview Survey reports include only those conditions which required medical attention or caused at least 1 day of activity restriction. Minor conditions not meeting these limiting criteria are excluded from the statistics. Each of these actions is a measure of the effect of the condition on the individual sustaining the illness or injury. Similarly, staying in bed for 1 or more days, or being hospitalized for the condition are other measures of effect of the condition.

Tables A and 1-4 present distributions of the average annual incidence of 51.2 million injuries sustained during July 1965-June 1967 for eight categories of injury shown in the detailed tables, as well as some subcategories in table A, by measures of effect of injury. About 86.6 percent of all injuries were medically attended, about half (54.7 percent) of all injuries caused reduced activity for at least 1 day, and about one-fourth (23.5 percent) resulted in the injured person staying in bed for at least 1 day. About two of each five injuries (41.4 percent) required both medical attention and reduced daily activity. Table A shows that all fractures of the femur were medically attended and caused activity restriction. Most of the fractures of the femur also had bed disability. Other sprains and strains had the lowest percentage of medical attention; poisoning had the lowest percentage of activity restriction as well as bed stay.

Among males • out 89.4 percent of all injuries were medically attended compared with 82.7 percent of injuries among females (table 2). However, the percentages of activity restricting and bed disabling injuries were higher for females than for males, as shown below:

| | Male | Female |
|----------------------|------|--------|
| Activity restriction | 51.1 | 59.7 |
| Bed disability | 21.4 | 26.4 |

The greater use of medical attention for injuries among males is probably related to the precautionary practice in industry of requiring medical care for all work injuries, regardless of severity of the injury. Injuries to females in the home may not require medical attention but may interfere with performance of housework. For instance, a cut or bruise on the hand may cause restriction of such activities as washing dishes, doing laundry, and scrubbing, where immersion of the hand in hot water is painful and irritating to the injured member.

As age increased, the percentage of all injuries with only medical attention declined, and conversely, the proportion of injuries with activity restriction rose, as shown in table 4. A similar increase with advancing age was noted for injuries causing bed stay. This pattern was present for most of the eight categories of injury.

INCIDENCE OF INJURIES BY TYPE

Sex and Age

During July 1965-June 1967 there was an average annual incidence of 51.2 million injuries, or 26.8 injuries per 100 persons per year (table 5). These injuries were sustained by some 48.5 million persons who experienced an accident. Depending on the number of separate types of injury occurring to an injured person, a maximum of two and three quarter million persons, or 5.7 percent of the persons injured had at least two injuries per event. Females experienced a larger average number of injuries per person injured than did males, a ratio of 1.08 injuries per injured female compared with 1.04 per injured male. The average number of injuries per accident was lowest among persons under 17 years of age and was highest among persons 65 years of age and older, as shown below.

Number of injuries per person injured

| Under 17 years | 1.03 |
|-------------------|------|
| 17-24 years | 1.08 |
| 25-44 years | 1.06 |
| 45-64 years | 1.08 |
| 65 years and over | 1.11 |

Among the 51.2 million injuries occurring during the average 12-month period July 1965-June 1967 the most frequently reported type of injury was lacerations and abrasions, representing 34.5 percent of the total injuries (from data in table B). The second most frequently reported type of injury was contusions, 14.9 percent of the total. Types of injury with lowest rates of occurrence were fracture of the femur, 0.2 percent of the total injuries, and poisonings, representing 1.8 percent of all injuries.

In general, a higher proportion of the reported injuries were sustained by males than by females. The sole exception was adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures where the rate of injury was about 30 percent higher for females than males. Table C shows that certain types of injury occur more frequently in some specific age groups than in others. For instance, about two-thirds of all poisonings occurred among children under 17 years of age. Similarly, the majority of the adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures occurred among children. Preschool children are particularly susceptible to these types of injuries. About 384,000 (40.8 percent) of the total estimated 942,000 poisonings, and 1,116,000 (51.3 percent) of the 2,176,000 adverse reactions occurred among children under 6 years of age. Exposure to risk of adverse effects to medical/surgical procedures is increased in this age group because of previously unknown sensitivities to vaccines, inoculants, and medications. Accidental poisoning in small children is often due to ingestion of toxic substances found in the home.

The incidence rate of injury per 100 persons per year for all injuries was 26.8, and the rate for males, 32.3, was substantially higher than that for females, 21.6 (tables C and 5). These rates were similar to those reported for 1957-61 in Series 10, Number 8: 27.8 for both sexes, 33.0 for males, and 22.9 for females. During the current period, the rate of injury was highest among persons of each sex aged 17-24 years. The incidence rate was lowest for males aged 65 years and older, while for females the lowest rate was reported for those aged 45-64 years. The rate of injury among males

| Type of injury | Both sexes | Male | Female | Both sexes | Male | Female |
|--|---|---|--|--|---|--|
| | Average number of injuries in thousands | | | Number 100 p | of inju ersons p | ries per er year |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 29,874 | 21,368 | 26.8 | 32.3 | 21.6 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, not elsewhere classified Other fractures and dislocations- Fracture of femur | 3,053 5,252 107 4,090 1,054 2,725 6,717 17,655 7,656 2,233 2,176 3,777 | $ \begin{array}{c} 1,796\\ 3,182\\ & \\ 2,508\\ 639\\ 1,560\\ 3,665\\ 10,757\\ 4,276\\ 1,297\\ 919\\ 2,423\\ \end{array} $ | 1,257 2,070 * 1,583 415 1,164 3,052 6,898 3,380 936 1,257 1,353 | 1.6 2.7 0.1 2.1 0.6 1.4 3.5 9.2 4.0 1.2 1.1 2.0 | 1.9 3.4 * 2.7 0.7 1.7 4.0 11.6 4.6 1.4 1.0 2.6 | 1.3 2.1 * 1.6 0.4 1.2 3.1 7.0 3.4 0.9 1.3 1.4 |
| Poisonings Other current injuries | 942 2,835 | 639 1,784 | 303 1,050 | 0.5 1.5 | 0.7 1.9 | 0.3 1.1 |

Table B. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons, by sex and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

was higher than that for females in each age group except 65 years and over. This age-sex pattern of the injury rate is quite similar to that occurring in the 4-year period July 1957-June 1961 and reinforces the explanation offered in Series 10, Number 8—when men retire from the labor force, their exposure to the risk of injury is reduced, but a high proportion of older women continue to keep house or perform other work and are still exposed to the risk of injury.

The category, lacerations and abrasions, was the leading type of injury for each sex and age group except 65 years and over. Among persons 65 years and over contusions was the leading type of injury. Among each of the eight types of injury shown in the detailed tables the rate of injury was appreciably higher among persons under 45 years than among those 45 years and over.

Selected Characteristics of Injured Persons

The incidence rate of injuries was somewhat higher in the South and West Regions of the United States than in the Northeast and North Central Regions (table 6). The incidence rates for the period July 1965-June 1967 were quite similar to

Table C. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons, by age and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

| Type of injury | All ages | Under 17 years | 17-44 years | 45+ years | A11 ages | Under 17 years | 17-44 years | 45 + years |
|--|--------------------------|------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|--------------------------|
| | Aver | age number in thous | of injur ands | ies | Nu 1 | mber of inj 00 persons | uries p per yea | er r |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 19,677 | 20,511 | 11,055 | 26.8 | 29.4 | 30.2 | 19.5 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, not elsewhere classi- | | | | | | | | |
| fied | 3,053 | 1,577 | 995 | 481 | 1.6 | 2.4 | 1.5 | 0.8 |
| dislocations | 5,252 | 1,665 | 2,050 | 1,537 | 2.7 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.7 |
| Fracture of femur- Other fractures Dislocations | 107 4,090 1,054 | * 1,421 226 | * 1,484 549 | * 1,185 279 | 0.1 2.1 0.6 | * 2.1 0.3 | * 2.2 0.8 | * 2.1 0.5 |
| of back | 2,725 | 263 | 1,606 | 855 | 1.4 | 0.4 | 2.4 | 1.5 |
| Other sprains and strains Lacerations and | 6,717 | 1,823 | 3,203 | 1,690 | 3.5 | 2.7 | 4.7 | 3.0 |
| abrasions Contusions Burns Adverse effects of | 17,655 7,656 2,233 | 8,596 2,115 741 | 6,651 3,057 1,011 | 2,408 2,484 481 | 9.2 4.0 1.2 | 12.8 3.2 1.1 | 9.8 4.5 1.5 | 4.2 4.4 0.8 |
| procedures | 2,176 | 1,455 | 379 | 341 | 1.1 | 2.2 | 0.6 | 0.6 |
| All other current injuries | 3,777 | 1,441 | 1,557 | 779 | 2.0 | 2.2 | 2.3 | 1.4 |
| Poisonings | 942 | 613 | 211 | 118 | 0.5 | 0.9 | 0.3 | 0.2 |
| Other current injuries | 2,835 | 828 | 1,346 | 661 | 1.5 | 1.2 | 2.0 | 1.2 |

those for the 4-year period ending in June 1961, as shown below:

| Region | July 1957- June 1961 | July 1965- June 1967 |
|---|------------------------------|------------------------------|
| | Incidence r persons | ate per 100 per year |
| All regions | 27.8 | 26.8 |
| Northeast North Central South West | 25.6 28.4 26.5 33.4 | 25.5 25.7 28.2 27.9 |

Observed differences in rates for each region are within limits of sampling variability. There was very little difference in incidence rates for the four regions among persons under 45 years of age, but for older persons the incidence rate for the South Region, 23.7 injuries per 100 persons per year, was somewhat higher than the rates for the other regions although sampling variability must be considered to contribute to these differences in rates (table 6).

Rates of injury by place of residence were quite similar, although the rate for persons living in metropolitan areas was slightly higher than that for persons living outside these areas (table 7). The higher rate in metropolitan areas was confined to persons under 45 years of age. Among older persons the rate for farm residents was highest, but sampling variation in rates may explain the fluctuation.

As family income rose, the rate of injury also increased from 25.9 injuries per 100 persons per year among persons with income under \$5,000 to 28.1 for persons with income of \$10,000 and over (table 8). Again, the difference in rate is not significant due to sampling variation. However, the pattern follows that reported earlier in Series 10, Number 8. The rise in rate with income gain is confined to persons under 45 years of age. Among older persons the incidence rate was lowest in the middle income group. Each person 17 years of age and over was classified according to the highest grade completed in the regular school system. The educational attainment shown in tables 9 and 22 is that completed at the time of the interview; thus, some high school and college students may be classified at an educational level lower than that they may eventually attain on the completion of their education.

The incidence rate of current injury among persons 17-44 years of age was approximately the same for persons with less than 9 years of schooling and those with some high school education (table 9). The rate was somewhat lower for persons with 13 or more years of education; a similar pattern was noted for persons aged 45 years and older. The lower rate for persons 17 years and over with under 9 years of education resulted from the large proportion of older persons in this educational group (73.1 percent of these persons were 45 years of age and older).

Information is available to summarize incidence rates of all injuries for several subcategories of the educational groups. These rates per 100 persons per year are shown below by age:

| Age | Ye | ars of comp | school | - |
|---|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------|
| | 9-11 | 12 | 13-15 | 16+ |
| All ages, 17+- | 31.4 | 24.1 | 26.2 | 19.7 |
| 17-24 years 25-44 years 45+ years | 37.5 35.2 23.7 | 32.9 24.9 17.1 | 37.8 24.0 18.0 | 29.5 20.5 16.0 |

The rate of injury was higher among white persons than among nonwhite persons, 27.7 injuries per 100 white persons of all ages compared with a rate of 20.0 for nonwhite persons (table 10). This difference in rate occurs solely among persons under 45 years of age. Some portion of the differing rates probably results from lesser utilization of physician services by nonwhite as compared with that for white persons. For instance, during July 1966-June 1967 white persons made an average of 4.5 visits to physicians during the year. while nonwhite persons had an average of 3.1 visits per person per year (Series 10, No. 49). Since the estimates include only injuries requiring either medical attention or activity restriction, the lesser use of medical services could have resulted in the exclusion of some injuries to nonwhite persons which were not cared for by a medical doctor. Similarly, if the person did not restrict his activities for at least a day due to the injury, the injury would not be counted. Thus, the actions persons take as a result of injury have a marked effect on the level of incidence figures. However, even when the incidence of injuries is restricted to those causing reduction in daily activity, the difference in rates for white and nonwhite persons is not changed to any extent, as shown below:

| | the second s | | |
|-------------------------------------|--|--------------|--|
| Age | Activity-restricting injuries per 100 persons per year | | |
| | White | Nonwhite | |
| All ages | 15.2 | 10.8 | |
| Under 45 years 45 years and over | 16.7 11.6 | 10.1 13.6 | |

From data shown in table 10 it appears that the difference in rates by race was greater for fractures and dislocations, and sprains and strains, than for other types of injury shown in the table. It would seem unlikely that a person with a fracture or dislocation would not seek medical attention for the condition. Thus, it is possible that underreporting of injuries by nonwhite respondents may cause some of the difference in rates.

Persons who reported one or more chronic conditions in the interview were asked if these chronic illnesses caused limitation of activity or mobility. Persons with limitation of activity had higher incidence rates of injury than did the civilian, noninstitutional population as a whole, particularly among persons under 45 years of age (table 11). However, the difference in rates is not significant due to sampling variation. Similarly, observed differences in rates for persons with limitation of mobility and the total population could result from sampling variability of the data.

The incidence of injuries among married persons living with relatives was lower than that for unrelated individuals living alone or with other persons and for other than married persons living with relatives (table 12). The incidence rates for the three types of living arrangements during July 1957-June 1961 and July 1965-June 1967 displayed about the same pattern, as shown below:

| Living arrangement | July 1957- June 1961 | July 1965- June 1967 |
|--|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| | Incidence r persons | ate per 100 per year |
| All persons | 27.8 | 26.8 |
| Living alone or with non- relatives Living with | 31.1 | 27.5 |
| relatives: Married Other | 24.8 30.5 | 24.5 28.8 |

The higher rates of injury among persons under 45 years of age who were living alone or with nonrelatives, or living in family groups and not presently married reflect the high proportion of young persons, a population group with high incidence of injury, included in these living arrangement categories. For example, most (80.2 percent) of the "other" group were children under 17 years of age and about half (53.9 percent) of the persons living alone or with nonrelatives were 17-24 years of age.

Seasonal Variation

İ.

The incidence of injury has been arranged in table 13 by calendar quarter in which the injury was reported in the health interview. Since most of the 2-week-reference periods in which the injury actually occurred were within the same 3 months of data collection, the time periods shown in the table can be considered as the time of onset of the injury. In accordance with seasonal pattern established in earlier survey data, the incidence rate of injury in July-September of 1965 and 1966 was slightly higher than in April-June of 1966 and 1967. It was lowest in the January-March quarter. The seasonal variation in rates was greater for persons under 45 years of age than for older persons. It is probable that the risk of injury is greater during the spring and summer months when persons are more active and travel about more than during the remainder of the year.

Class of Accident

The incidence of injuries distributed by class of accident in tables 14 and 15 represents a broad classification of the types of events which resulted in persons being injured. Most of these events are accidents in the usual sense of the word, but others are not usually considered to be accidents, e.g., overexposure to the sun, adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures, or nonaccidental violence.

The classes of accident presented are: (1) moving motor vehicle, subclassified as traffic, i.e., a moving motor vehicle accident occurring on a street or highway (see appendix II for the definition), (2) accidents occurring while at work, (3) at home, and (4) other accidents or mishaps, "Other" includes nonmoving motor vehicle accidents, injuries occurring in public places, adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures, and other injuries which could not be classified in one or more of the specified classes. The distribution of injuries may be duplicated in one or more classes, for instance an injury occurring at home while the person is at work in the home is included under both classes of accident, About 4.5 percent of the injuries were classified in two or more classes.

The highest rate of injury was in the home, 11.0 injuries per 100 persons per year. The lowest rate occurred for moving motor vehicle injuries with most of the injuries occurring in traffic accidents. There was very little difference by sex in the rate for moving motor vehicle and home injuries, but the rate of work injuries for males greatly exceeded that for females. The rate of injury in the "other" class was higher for males than for females.

DISABILITY DAYS ASSOCIATED WITH INJURIES

Information was obtained in the health interview about the short-term disability associated with current injuries. The days of disability are estimated from current disability reported for injuries which occurred within 3 months of the date of interview. Excluded from current disability are days of disability associated with the present effects of old injuries. Present effects of old injuries are classified as impairments, and disability due to such impairments is attributed to them.

The numbers of restricted-activity and beddisability days in tables 16-19 are the days associated with each type of injury, so the summation of days for all injuries shown in the tables will be greater than the total number of person-days of disability due to injury. As mentioned earlier the total number of injuries exceeded the number of persons injured by 5.7 percent, indicating that some persons experienced more than one injury in an accident. For instance, a person may have fractured his left femur and also suffered a contusion or laceration of the leg. Disability days reported for each of these injuries are counted for inclusion as condition-days.

A day of bed-disability is counted as a day of restricted activity, but the converse of this is not necessarily true. For instance, a person may cut down on his usual activities for a day but not spend the day in bed.

The current disability associated with injuries totaled 323.7 million days of restricted activity and 88.5 million days in bed during the average 12-month period during July 1965-June 1967,

representing rates of 169.0 days of restricted activity and 46.2 days of bed disability per 100 persons per year.

Disability-day rates for all injuries rose with age for females, but for males the rates rose to a peak at 25-44 years for restricted-activity days and 17-24 years for bed-days and then declined. The

restricted-activity day rates were higher for males: than females for all age groups, but bed-stay rates: were higher for males only between the ages of 17 and 64 years.

The annual rates of disability for the current period were somewhat similar to those reported for the period July 1957-June 1961, in Series 10.





Number 8, which was mentioned earlier. The comparative rates by sex are shown below:

ł,

| Characteristic | July 1957- June 1961 | July 1965- June 1967 |
|------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| Restricted activity | Days per 10 per y | 0 persons ear |
| Both sexes- | 160.8 | 169.0 |
| Male Female | 175.9 146.5 | 197.0 142.8 |
| Bed disability | | |
| Both sexes- | 44.8 | 46.2 |
| Male Female | 48.0 41.7 | 48.7 43.8 |

During July 1965-June 1967 the category, fractures and dislocations (other than skull fracture), was the largest contributor to days of disability. The 111.7 million days of restricted activity and the 29.2 million days of bed disability associated with fractures and dislocations contributed about onethird of the days due to all types of injuries.

Figure 1 is presented to show average duration of current disability per injury. This estimate is obtained by dividing the number of days per year by the number of injuries for each type of injury.

The average duration per injury of days of restricted activity was 6.3 for all injuries and 1.7 days of bed-stay. Fractures of the femur had the longest duration per case, 60.6 days of restricted activity and 24.0 days spent in bed. Poisonings had the shortest duration of disability—1.0 day of restricted activity.

____000_____

DETAILED TABLES

MEASURES OF EFFECT OF INJURY

| Table | 1. | Average annual number of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 14 |
|-------|-----|---|----|
| | 2. | Percent distribution of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury accord- ing to sex and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 15 |
| | 3. | Average annual number of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 16 |
| | 4. | Percent distribution of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury accord- ing to age and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 17 |
| | | SEX AND AGE | |
| | 5. | Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 18 |
| | | GEOGRAPHIC REGION | |
| | 6. | Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by geographic region, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967- | 20 |
| | 7. | Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by residence, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967- | 22 |
| | | FAMILY INCOME, EDUCATION, AND COLOR | |
| | 8. | Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by family income, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 23 |
| | 9. | Average annual number of current injuries among persons aged 17 years and over and number of current injuries per 100 persons aged 17 years and over per year, by educational attainment, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 24 |
| | 10. | Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by color, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 25 |
| | | CHRONIC LIMITATION STATUS AND LIVING ARRANGEMENTS | |
| | 11. | Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons in total population and persons with activity and/or mobility limitation per year, by age and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 26 |
| | 12, | Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by living arrangement, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 27 |
| | | CALENDAR QUARTER | |
| | 13. | Average quarterly number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per quarter, by quarter, age, and type: Untied States, July 1965-June 1967 | 28 |

ì

1

•

CLASS OF ACCIDENT

| Table | 14. | Average annual number of current injuries, by class of accident, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 29 |
|-------|-----|---|----|
| | 15. | Number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by class of accident, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 30 |
| | | DISABILITY DAYS | |
| | 16. | Average annual number of days of restricted activity due to current injuries, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 31 |
| | 17. | Number of days of restricted activity due to current injuries per 100 persons per year, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 32 |
| | 18. | Average annual number of days of bed disability due to current injuries, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 33 |
| | 19. | Number of days of bed disability due to current injuries per 100 persons per year, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 34 |
| | | POPULATION | |
| | 20. | Average population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by geographic region, residence, sex, and age: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 35 |
| | 21. | Average population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by age and selected characteristics: United States, July 1965-June 1967 | 36 |
| | 22. | Average population aged 17 years and over used in obtaining rates shown in this | |

publication, by age and educational attainment: United States, July 1965-June 1967-- 37

Table 1. Average annual number of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | Measures of effect of injury | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|---|---|--|---|--|--|--|--|
| Sex and type of injury | | Medically attended, | Activity r | estricting | Bed disabling | | | | |
| | Total | but not activity re- stricting | Medically attended | Not medically attended | (included in activity restricting) | | | | |
| Both sexes | | Average number of injuries in thousands | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 23,201 | 21,200 | 6,842 | 12,048 | | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 3,053 5,252 2,725 6,717 17,655 7,656 2,233 | 1,557 1,603 698 1,959 9,935 3,512 1,333 | 1,219 3,408 1,589 3,350 6,063 2,548 599 | 277 437 1,407 1,657 1,596 301 | 875 1,963 1,098 1,642 2,596 1,855 359 | | | | |
| surgical proceduresAll other current injuries | 2,176 3,777 | 810 1,792 | 977 1,447 | 388 538 | 818 842 | | | | |
| Male | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 29,874 | 14,589 | 12,138 | 3,148 | 6,397 | | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 1,796 3,182 1,560 3,665 10,757 4,276 1,297 919 2,423 | 998 1,005 323 1,304 6,462 2,188 840 250 1,219 | 626 2,055 958 1,717 3,588 1,364 374 551 904 | * 279 644 707 723 * * 300 | 449 1,158 646 733 1,553 832 * 406 430 | | | | |
| Female | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 21,368 | 8,612 | 9,062 | 3,694 | 5,650 | | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 1,257 2,070 1,164 3,052 6,898 3,380 936 | 560 598 375 655 3,473 1,324 493 | 594 1,353 631 1,633 2,475 1,183 * | * * 763 950 873 * | 427 806 452 909 1,043 1,022 * | | | | |
| surgical procedures | 1,257 1,353 | 561 573 | 426 543 | 271 * | 411 411 | | | | |

NOTES: n.e.c. - not elsewhere classified.

Excluded from these statistics are all current injuries involving neither restricted activity nor medical attention.

.1

ć

Table 2. Percent distribution of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury according to sex and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | Measur | es of effe | ect of injury | , |
|--|--|--|--|---|--|
| Sex and type of injury | | Medically attended, | Activity | restricting | Bed disabling |
| Sex and type of injury Both sexes All injuries Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | | but not activity re- stricting | Medically attended | Not medically attended | (included in activity restricting) |
| Both sexes | | Pe | ercent dist | ribution | |
| All injuries | 100.0 | 45.3 | 41.4 | 13.4 | 23.5 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 | 51.0 30.5 25.6 29.2 56.3 45.9 59.7 37.2 47.4 | 39.9 64.9 58.3 49.9 34.3 33.3 26.8 44.9 38.3 | 9.1 * 16.0 20.9 9.4 20.8 13.5 17.8 14.2 | 28.7 37.4 40.3 24.4 14.7 24.2 16.1 37.6 22.3 |
| Male | | | | | |
| All injuries | 100.0 | 48.8 | 40.6 | 10.5 | 21.4 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 | 55.6 31.6 20.7 35.6 60.1 51.2 64.8 27.2 50.3 | 34.9 64.6 61.4 46.8 33.4 31.9 28.8 60.0 37.3 | * 17.9 17.6 6.6 16.9 * 12.4 | 25.0 36.4 41.4 20.0 14.4 19.5 * * 44.2 17.7 |
| Female | | | | | |
| All injuries | 100.0 | 40.3 | 42.4 | 17.3 | 26.4 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back Other sprains and strains Lacerations and abrasions Contusions Burns | $ \begin{array}{c} 100.0\\ 100.0\\ 100.0\\ 100.0\\ 100.0\\ 100.0\\ 100.0\\ 100.0 \end{array} $ | 44.6 28.9 32.2 21.5 50.3 39.2 52.7 | 47.3 65.4 54.2 53.5 35.9 35.0 * | * * 25.0 13.8 25.8 * | 34.0 38.9 38.8 29.8 15.1 30.2 |
| surgical procedures All other current injuries | 100.0 100.0 | 44.6 42.4 | 33.9 40.1 | 21.6 | 32.7 30.4 |

NOTES: n.e.c.--not elsewhere classified.

Table 3. Average annual number of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix I]

| | Measures of effect of injury | | | | | | | |
|---|---|---|---|---|---|--|--|--|
| Age and type of injury | Total | Medically attended, but not activity re- stricting | Activity r Medically attended | Not Not medically attended | Bed disabling (included in activity restricting) | | | |
| Under 17 years | I | Average numb | er of injur | ies in thou | Isands | | | |
| All injuries | 19,677 | 10,203 | 6,823 | 2,651 | 3,562 | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 1,577 1,665 263 1,823 8,596 2,115 741 1,455 1,441 | 994 708 * 488 5,123 1,156 374 473 804 | 466 921 * 863 2,590 527 * 727 388 | * 472 883 431 * 255 * | 404 533 398 879 329 329 545 * | | | |
| 17-44 years | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 20,511 | 8,622 | 9,608 | 2,281 | 5,280 | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 995 2,050 1,606 3,203 6,651 3,057 1,011 379 1,557 | 400 569 364 1,015 3,404 1,398 657 * 651 | 524 1,346 995 1,733 2,726 1,136 265 * 741 | * * 455 522 523 * * | 313 711 684 825 1,215 764 * 414 | | | |
| 45 years and over | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 4,376 | 4,769 | 1,910 | 3,205 | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 481 1,537 855 1,690 2,408 2,484 481 | * 326 252 456 1,409 958 302 | * 1,141 462 754 747 884 * | * * 480 252 642 * | * 719 364 419 502 761 * | | | |
| All other current injuries | 341 779 | * 337 | * 318 | * | * | | | |

NOTES: n.e.c.-not elsewhere classified.

Table 4. Percent distribution of current injuries, by measures of effect of injury according to age and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | Measur | es of effec | t of injury | |
|---|---|--|--|-------------------------------------|---|
| Age and type of injury | | Medically attended, | Activity r | estricting | Bed disabling |
| | Total | but not activity re- stricting | Medically attended | Not medically attended | (included in activity restricting) |
| Under 17 years | | Pe | ercent distr | ibution | |
| All injuries | 100.0 | 51.9 | 34.7 | 13.5 | 18.1 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 | 63.0 42.5 26.8 59.6 54.7 50.5 | 29.5 55.3 47.3 30.1 24.9 * | * 25.9 10.3 20.4 * | 25.6 32.0 21.8 10.2 15.6 |
| All other current injuries | 100.0 | 32.5 55.8 | 50.0 26.9 | 17.5 * | 37.5 |
| 17-44 years | | | | | |
| All injuries | 100.0 | 42.0 | 46.8 | 11.1 | 25.7 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 | 40.2 27.8 22.7 31.7 51.2 45.7 65.0 | 52.7 65.7 62.0 54.1 41.0 37.2 26.2 | * * 14.2 7.8 17.1 * | 31.5 34.7 42.6 25.8 18.3 25.0 * |
| All other current injuries | 100.0 100.0 | * 41.8 | * 47.6 | * | * 26.6 |
| 45 years and over | | | | | |
| All injuries | 100.0 | 39.6 | 43.1 | 17.3 | 29.0 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 | * 21.2 29.5 27.0 58.5 38.6 62.8 | * 74.2 54.0 44.6 31.0 35.6 * | * * 28.4 10.5 25.8 * | + 46.8 42.6 24.8 20.8 30.6 * |
| surgical procedures | 100.0 100.0 | * 43.3 | * 40.8 | * | * |

NOTES: n.e.c. -- not elsewhere classified.

Table 5. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix I]

| Sex and type of injury | All ages | Under 17 years | 17-24 years | 25-44 years | 45-64 years | 65+ years |
|--|-------------|----------------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|--------------|
| Both sexes | Avera | ge number | of inj | uries in | thousa | nds |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 19,677 | 7,947 | 12,563 | 8,063 | 2,992 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, p.e.c. | 3.053 | 1.577 | 553 | 442 | * | 261 |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 5,252 | 1.665 | 794 | 1,256 | 1.166 | 371 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 2,725 | 263 | 511 | 1.096 | 701 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 6,717 | 1.823 | 1.140 | 2.063 | 1.283 | 407 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 17.655 | 8,596 | 2,419 | 4,232 | 1.842 | 565 |
| Contusions | 7,656 | 2,115 | 1.418 | 1.639 | 1,510 | 973 |
| Burns | 2,233 | 741 | 381 | 630 | 461 | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | | | | | | |
| surgical procedures | 2,176 | 1,455 | * | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 3,777 | 1,441 | 587 | 970 | 669 | * |
| Male | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 29,874 | 12,239 | 4,465 | 7,760 | 4,469 | 941 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 1,796 | 1.041 | * | 303 | * | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 3,182 | 1.020 | 497 | 836 | 727 | * |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1,560 | * | 275 | 677 | 430 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 3.665 | 981 | 622 | 1.268 | 724 | * |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 10,757 | 5,438 | 1.538 | 2.637 | 902 | * |
| Contusions | 4.276 | 1,513 | 800 | 898 | 763 | 301 |
| Burns | 1.297 | 434 | * | 389 | 286 | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | | | | | | |
| surgical procedures | 919 | 720 | * | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 2,423 | 983 | 342 | 662 | 418 | * |
| Female | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 21,368 | 7,438 | 3,482 | 4,803 | 3,594 | 2,051 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 1,257 | 536 | 367 | * | * | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 2,070 | 645 | 298 | 420 | 439 | 269 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1,164 | * | * | 419 | 271 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 3,052 | 842 | 518 | 794 | 559 | 339 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 6,898 | 3,158 | 881 | 1,595 | 940 | 323 |
| Contusions | 3,380 | 602 | 618 | 742 | 747 | 672 |
| Burns | 936 | 307 | * | * | * | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures | 1,257 | 736 | * | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 1,353 | 458 | * | 308 | 251 | * |

Table 5. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967-Con.

Under A11 17-24 25 - 4445-64 65+ Sex and type of injury 17 ages years years years years vears Both sexes Number of injuries per 100 persons per year All injuries-----26.8 | 29.4 35.0 27.8 20.7 16.9 Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----1.6 2.4 2.4 1.0 * 1.5 Other fractures and dislocations------2.7 2.5 3.5 2.8 3.0 2.1 Sprains and strains of back------1.4 0.4 2.2 2.4 1.8 * Other sprains and strains-----3.5 2.7 5.0 4.6 3.3 2.3 Lacerations and abrasions-----10.6 9.4 9.2 12.8 4.7 3.2 Contusions-----4.0 3.2 6.2 3.6 3.9 5.5 Burns------1.2 1.2 1.1 1.7 1.4 * Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures-----1.1 2.2 * × × * All other current injuries-----2.0 2.2 1.7 2.6 2.1 * Male All injuries-----32.3 36.0 42.3 12.2 36.0 23.9 Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----1.9 3.1 * * * 1.4 3.9 Other fractures and dislocations-----3.4 3.0 4.7 3.9 * Sprains and strains of back------1.7 * 2.6 3.1 2.3 * Other sprains and strains-----4.0 2.9 5.9 5.9 3.9 * Lacerations and abrasions-----11.6 16.0 14.6 12.2 4.8 * Contusions-----4.6 7.6 4.4 4.2 4.1 3.9 1.4 1.3 * 1.8 1.5 * Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures-----1.0 2.1 * * * * All other current injuries-----2.6 2.9 3.2 3.1 2.2 * Female 21.6 22.6 28.6 20.3 17.7 20.5 All injuries-----* * * 1.3 1.6 3.0 Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----Other fractures and dislocations-----2.1 2.0 2.4 1.8 2.2 2.7 Sprains and strains of back-----1.8 1.3 × 1.2 * * 3.4 Other sprains and strains-----3.1 2.6 4.3 3.4 2.8 Lacerations and abrasions-----9.6 7.2 6.8 4.6 3.2 7.0 3.1 3.7 6.7 Gontusions 1.8 5.1 3.4 * * * 0.9 * 0.9 Adverse effects of medical/ * * 1.3 2.2 * * surgical procedures-----1.4 * 1.3 1.2 *

Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II

NOTES: n.e.c.-not elsewhere classified.

All other current injuries------

J.

Excluded from these statistics are all current injuries involving neither restricted activity nor medical attention.

1.4

Table 6. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by geographic region, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | Geogra | phic regi | on | |
|--|----------------|----------------|------------------|---------|-------|
| Age and type of injury | All regions | North- east | North Central | South | West |
| All ages | Average | number of | injuries | in thou | sands |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 12,168 | 13,754 | 16,546 | 8,775 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 3,053 | 902 | 937 | 738 | 477 |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 5,252 | 920 | 1.688 | 1,556 | 1.089 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 2,725 | 659 | 703 | 866 | 497 |
| Other sprains and strains | 6.717 | 1.458 | 1.899 | 2,113 | 1.246 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 17,655 | 3,964 | 4,709 | 6,037 | 2,946 |
| Contusions | 7,656 | 2,153 | 1,748 | 2,621 | 1,134 |
| Burns | 2,233 | 496 | 674 | 770 | 293 |
| Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures | 2,176 | 698 | 498 | 576 | 404 |
| All other current injuries | 3,777 | 918 | 899 | 1,270 | 689 |
| Under 45 years | | | | | |
| All injuries | 40,187 | 9,368 | 11,030 | 12,647 | 7,143 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 2,572 | 726 | 758 | 629 | 460 |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 3,715 | 559 | 1,258 | 1,074 | 824 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1,870 | 429 | 450 | 596 | 394 |
| Other sprains and strains | 5,026 | 1,008 | 1,440 | 1,567 | 1,001 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 15,247 | 3,529 | 4,188 | 5,049 | 2,481 |
| Contusions | 5,172 | 1,349 | 1,304 | 1,665 | 854 |
| Burns | 1,752 | 408 | 499 | 612 | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures | 1,835 | 591 | 407 | 485 | 351 |
| All other current injuries | 2,998 | 768 | 726 | 971 | 533 |
| 45 years and over | | : | | | e |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 2,801 | 2,724 | 3,899 | 1,632 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 481 | * | * | * | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 1,537 | 361 | 430 | 482 | 264 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 855 | * | 253 | 270 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 1,690 | 450 | 459 | 546 | * |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 2,408 | 434 | 520 | 988 | 465 |
| Contusions | 2,484 | 304 | 444 | 956 | 280 |
| Burns | 481 | * | * | * | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures | 341 | * | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 799 | * | * | 299 | / + |

Table 6. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by geographic region, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967-Con.

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | Geogra | nhic regi | 011 | |
|--|---------|----------------|---------------------|-----------|------|
| | | | F | | , |
| Age and type of injury | All | North- | North | South | West |
| ······································ | regions | east | Central | | l |
| All ages | Number | of injur pe | ies per l r year | .00 perso | ns |
| All injuries | 26.8 | 25.5 | 25.7 | 28.2 | 27.9 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 1.6 | 1.9 | 1.8 | 1.3 | 1.5 |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 2.7 | 1.9 | 3.2 | 2.6 | 3.5 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1.4 | 1.4 | 1.3 | 1.5 | 1.6 |
| Other sprains and strains | 3.5 | 3.1 | 3.6 | 3.6 | 4.0 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 9.2 | 9.3 | 8.8 | 10.3 | 9.4 |
| Contusions | 4.0 | 4.5 | 3.3 | 4.5 | 3.6 |
| Burns | 1.2 | 1.0 | 1.3 | 1.3 | 0.9 |
| Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures | 1.1 | 1.5 | 0.9 | 1.0 | 1.3 |
| All other current injuries | 2.0 | 1.9 | 1.7 | 2.2 | 2.2 |
| Under 45 years | | | | | |
| All injuries | 29.8 | 28.9 | 29.5 | 29.9 | 31.5 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 1.9 | 2.2 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 2.0 |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 2.8 | 1.7 | 3.4 | 2.5 | 3.6 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1.4 | 1.3 | 1.2 | 1.4 | 1.7 |
| Other sprains and strains | 3.7 | 3.1 | 3.9 | 3.7 | 4.5 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 11.3 | 10.9 | 11.2 | 11.9 | 10.9 |
| Contusions | 3.8 | 4.2 | 3.5 | 3.9 | 3.8 |
| Burns | 1.3 | 1.3 | 1.3 | 1.4 | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures | 1.4 | 1.8 | 1.1 | 1.1 | 1.5 |
| All other current injuries | 2.2 | 2.4 | 1.9 | 2.3 | 2.3 |
| 45 years and over | | | | | |
| All injuries | 19.5 | 18.3 | 16.9 | 23.7 | 18.5 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 0.8 | * | * | * | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 2.7 | 2.4 | 2.7 | 2.9 | 3.0 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1.5 | * | 1.6 | 1.6 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 3.0 | 2.9 | 2.9 | 3.3 | * |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 4.2 | 2.8 | 3.2 | 6.0 | 5.3 |
| Contusions | 4.4 | 5.2 | 2.8 | 5.8 | 3.2 |
| Burns | 0.8 | * | * | * | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures | 0.6 | * | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 1.4 | * | * | 1.8 | * |

NOTES: n.e.c. - not elsewhere classified.

Table 7. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by residence, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | Residence | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|---|--|------------------------------------|---|---|---|---|--|
| Age and type of injury | | A11 | Outside SMSA's | | A11 | A11 | Outside SMSA's | | |
| | areas | SMSA's | Nonfarm | Farm | areas | SMSA's | Nonfarm | Farm | |
| All ages | Average number of injuries in thousands | | | | Number of injuries per 100 persons per year | | | | |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 33,778 | 14,836 | 2,629 | 26.8 | 27.4 | 25.7 | 24.6 | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | .3,053 5,252 2,725 6,717 17,655 7,656 2,233 2,176 | 2,140 3,175 1,881 4,683 11,455 5,132 1,404 1.412 | 776 1,733 776 1,603 5,315 2,057 762 747 | * 343 430 885 467 * | 1.6 2.7 1.4 3.5 9.2 4.0 1.2 1.1 | 1.7 2.6 1.5 3.8 9.3 4.2 1.1 | 1.3 3.0 1.3 2.8 9.2 3.6 1.3 1.3 | * 3.2 * 4.0 8.3 4.4 * | |
| All other current injuries | 3,777 | 2,495 | 1,066 | * | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.8 | * | |
| Under 45 years | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 40,187 | _ 27,022 | 11,466 | 1,699 | 29.8 | 30.9 | 28.3 | 24.6 | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back Other sprains and strains Lacerations and abrasions | 2,572 3,715 1,870 5,026 15,247 5,172 1,752 1,835 | 1,817 2,276 1,358 3,557 10,147 3,591 1,033 1,216 | 635 1,279 494 1,181 4,417 1,344 652 619 | * * 288 683 * * | 1.9 2.8 1.4 3.7 11.3 3.8 1.3 1.4 | 2.12.61.64.111.64.11.21.4 | 1.6 3.2 1.2 2.9 10.9 3.3 1.6 1.5 | * * 4.2 9.9 * * | |
| All other current injuries | 2,998 | 2,028 | 845 | * | 2.2 | 2.3 | 2.1 | * | |
| 45 years and over | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 6,756 | 3,370 | 930 | 19.5 | 18.9 | 19.7 | 24.4 | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | 481 1,537 855 1,690 2,408 2,484 481 341 | 323 899 524 1,126 1,309 1,541 371 * | * 454 282 423 898 713 * | * * * * * | 0.8 2.7 1.5 3.0 4.2 4.4 0.8 | 0.9 2.5 1.5 3.1 3.7 4.3 1.0 | * 2.7 1.6 2.5 5.3 4.2 * | ***** | |
| All other current injuries | 779 | 467 | * | * | 1.4 | 1.3 | * | * | |

NOTES: n.e.c. - not elsewhere classified.

Table 8. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by family income, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | Family income | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|------------------|---------------------|-------------------------|--|------------------|---------------------|-------------------------|--|
| Age and type of injury | All incomes ¹ | Under \$5,000 | \$5,000- \$9,999 | \$10,000 and over | All incomes ¹ | Under \$5,000 | \$5,000- \$9,999 | \$10,000 and over | |
| All ages | Average number of injuries in thousands | | | | Number of injuries per 100 persons per year | | | | |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 15,700 | 21,508 | 12,234 | 26.8 | 25.9 | 27.1 | 28.1 | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.é.c. | 3,053 | 1,048 | 1,172 | 758 | 1.6 | 1.7 | 1.5 | 1.7 | |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 5,252 | 1,556 | 2,320 | 1,192 | 2.7 | 2.6 | 2.9 | 2.7 | |
| Sprains and strains of back | 2,725 | 612 | 1,338 | 702 | 1.4 | 1.0 | 1.7 | 1.6 | |
| Other sprains and strains | 6,717 | 1,950 | 2,485 | 1,953 | 3.5 | 3.2 | 3.1 | 4.5 | |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 17,655 | 5,355 | 7,572 | 4,106 | 9.2 | 8.8 | 9.5 | 9.4 | |
| Contusions | 7,656 | 2,744 | 2,940 | 1,734 | 4.0 | 4.5 | 3.7 | 4.0 | |
| Burns | 2,233 | 882 | 809 | 442 | 1.2 | 1.5 | 1.0 | 1.0 | |
| Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures | 2,176 | 547 | 1,107 | 487 | 1.1 | 0.9 | 1.4 | 1.1 | |
| All other current injuries | 3,777 | 1,006 | 1,765 | 860 | 2.0 | 1.7 | 2.2 | 2.0 | |
| Under 45 years | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 40,187 | 10,648 | 18,393 | 9,998 | 29.8 | 28.9 | 29.9 | 31.3 | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 2,572 | · 710 | 1,066 | 720 | 1.9 | 1.9 | 1.7 | 2.3 | |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 3,715 | 929 | 1,819 | 897 | 2.8 | 2.5 | 3.0 | 2.8 | |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1,870 | 372 | 1,016 | 466 | 1.4 | 1.0 | 1.7 | 1.5 | |
| Other sprains and strains | 5,026 | 1,266 | 2,024 | 1,563 | 3.7 | 3.4 | 3.3 | 4.9 | |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 15,247 | 4,180 | 6,901 | 3,604 | 11.3 | 11.3 | 11.2 | 11.3 | |
| Contusions | 5,172 | 1,443 | 2,391 | 1,245 | 3.8 | 3.9 | 3.9 | 3.9 | |
| Burns | 1,752 | 668 | 681 | 335 | 1.3 | 1.8 | 1.1 | 1.0 | |
| Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures | 1,835 | 385 | 982 | 468 | 1.4 | 1.0 | 1.6 | 1.5 | |
| All other current injuries | 2,998 | 693 | 1,513 | 700 | 2.2 | 1.9 | 2.5 | 2.2 | |
| 45 years and over | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 5,051 | 3,115 | 2,236 | 19.5 | 21.3 | 17.4 | 19.2 | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 481 | 337 | * | * | 0.8 | 1.4 | * | * | |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 1,537 | 627 | 501 | 295 | 2.7 | 2.6 | 2.8 | 2.5 | |
| Sprains and strains of back | 855 | * | 322 | * | 1.5 | * | 1.8 | * | |
| Other sprains and strains | 1,690 | 683 | 461 | 390 | 3.0 | 2.9 | 2.6 | 3.4 | |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 2,408 | 1,174 | 671 | 502 | 4.2 | 4.9 | 3.7 | 4.3 | |
| Contusions | 2.484 | 1.301 | 549 | 489 | 4.4 | 5.5 | 3.1 | 4.2 | |
| Burns | 481 | * | * | * | 0.8 | * | * | * | |
| Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures | 341 | * | * | * | 0.6 | * | * | * | |
| All other current injuries | • 779 | 313 | 252 | * | 1.4 | 1.3 | 1.4 | * | |

¹Includes unknown income.

NOTES: n.e.c. -- not elsewhere classified.

Table 9. Average annual number of current injuries among persons aged 17 years and over and number of current injuries per 100 persons aged 17 years and over per year, by educational attainment, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | | | Educa | tion | <u></u> | | |
|--|---|---------------------------|-----------------|--------------|--|---------------------|-------|--------------|
| Age and type of injury | All educational groups ¹ | Under 9 years | 9-12 years | 13+ years | A11 educational groups ¹ | Under 9 years | 9-12 | 13+ years |
| All ages, 17+ years | Average i | number o n thousa | f injuri nds | es | Number of injuries per 100 persons per year | | | |
| All injuries | 31,566 | 31,566 7,612 17,895 5,538 | | | 25.3 | 23.2 | 27.0 | 23.3 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 1,476 | 337 | 824 | 299 | 1.2 | 1.0 | 1.2 | 1.3 |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 3,587 | 939 | 1,903 | 671 | 2.9 | 2.9 | 2.9 | 2.8 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 2,461 | 502 | 1,451 | 475 | 2.0 | 1.5 | 2.2 | 2.0 |
| Other sprains and strains | 4,893 | 1,015 | 2,812 | 977 | 3.9 | 3.1 | 4.2 | 4.1 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 9,059 | 2,104 | 5,158 | 1,629 | 1.3 | 6.4 | / /.8 | 6.9 |
| Contusions | 5,541 | 1,000 | 2,962 | 826 | 4.4 | 5.1 | 4.5 | 3.5 |
| Advance offects of modical/ | 1,492 | 309 | 1,022 | 7 | 1.2 | 0.9 | 1.5 | * |
| surgical procedures | 720 | * | 437 | * | 0.6 | * | 0.7 | * |
| All other current injuries | 2,336 | 564 | 1,326 | 427 | 1.9 | 1.7 | 2.0 | 1.8 |
| 17-44 years | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 20,511 | 2,818 | 13,276 | 4,128 | 30.2 | 31.9 | 30.8 | 26.7 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 995 | * | 649 | * | 1.5 | * | 1.5 | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 2,050 | * | 1,365 | 439 | 3.0 | * | 3.2 | 2.8 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1,606 | * | 1,131 | 324 | 2.4 | * | 2.6 | 2.1 |
| Other sprains and strains | 3,203 | 344 | 1,999 | 807 | 4.7 | 3.9 | 4.6 | 5.2 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 6,651 | 1,069 | 4,151 | 1,285 | 9.8 | 12.1 | 9.6 | 8.3 |
| Contusions | 3,057 | 450 | 2,006 | 549 | 4.5 | 5.1 | 4.7 | 3.5 |
| Burns | 1,011 | * | 715 | * | 1.5 | * | 1.7 | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures | 379 | * | * | * | 0.6 | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 1,557 | * | 1,043 | 301 | 2.3 | * | 2.4 | 1.9 |
| 45+ years | | | | ļ | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 4,793 | 4,619 | 1,410 | 19.5 | 19.9 | 19.9 | 17.1 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 481 | * | * | * | 0.8 | * | * | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 1,537 | 693 | 538 | * | 2.7 | 2.9 | 2.3 | * |
| Sprains and strains of back | 855 | 368 | 320 | * | 1.5 | 1.5 | 1.4 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 1,690 | 672 | 813 | * | 3.0 | 2.8 | 3.5 | * |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 2,408 | 1,036 | 1,008 | 334 | 4.2 | 4.3 | 4.3 | 4.2 |
| Contusions | 2,484 | 1,217 | 956 | 276 | 4.4 | 5.1 | 4.1 | 3.3 |
| Burns | 481 | * | 307 | * | 0.8 | * | 1.3 | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures | 341 | * | * | * | 0.6 | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 779 | 350 | 284 | * | 1.4 | 1.5 | 1.2 | * |

¹Includes unknown education.

NOTES: n.e.c. -- not elsewhere classified.

Table 10. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by color, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | tr | | | | |
|---|--------------|------------------------|------------------|-----------------|---------------------|---------------------|
| Age and type of injury | Total | White | Nonwhite | Total | White | Nonwhite |
| All ages | Ave injur | rage numb ies in th | er of ousands | Number 100 p | of inju ersons p | ries per er year |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 46,658 | 4,584 | 26.8 | 27.7 | 20.0 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 3,053 | 2,832 | * | 1.6 | 1.7 | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 5,252 | 4,911 | 341 | 2.7 | 2.9 | 1.5 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 2,725 | 2,608 | * | 1.4 | 1.5 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 6,717 | 6,274 | 442 | 3.5 | 3.7 | 1.9 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 17,655 | 15,773 | 1,882 | 9.2 | 9.4 | 8.2 |
| Contusions | 7,656 | 6,895 | 761 | 4.0 | 4.1 | 3.3 |
| Burns | 2,233 | 1.954 | 279 | 1.2 | 1.2 | 1.2 |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | | | | | | |
| surgical procedures | 2,176 | 2,031 | * | 1.1 | 1.2 | * |
| All other current injuries | 3,777 | 3,380 | 397 | 2.0 | 2.0 | 1.7 |
| Under 45 years | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 40,187 | 36,625 | 3,562 | 29.8 | 31.3 | 19.9 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 2,572 | 2,427 | * | 1.9 | 2.1 | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 3,715 | 3,473 | * | 2.8 | 3.0 | * |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1,870 | 1,806 | * | 1.4 | 1.5 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 5,026 | 4,662 | 364 | 3.7 | 4.0 | 2.0 |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 15,247 | 13,657 | 1,590 | 11.3 | 11.7 | 8.9 |
| Contusions | 5,172 | 4,641 | 531 | 3.8 | 4.0 | 3.0 |
| Burns | 1,752 | 1,523 | * | 1.3 | 1.3 | * |
| Adverse effect of medical/ surgical procedures | 1,835 | 1,708 | * | 1.4 | 1.5 | * |
| All other current injuries | 2,998 | 2,728 | 270 | 2.2 | 2.3 | 1.5 |
| 45 years and over | | - | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 10,033 | 1,022 | 19.5 | 19.4 | 20.1 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 481 | 405 | * | 0.8 | 0.8 | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 1,537 | 1,438 | * | 2.7 | 2.8 | * |
| Sprains and strains of back | 855 | 802 | * | 1.5 | 1.6 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 1,690 | 1,612 | * | 3.0 | 3.1 | * |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 2,408 | 2,116 | 292 | 4.2 | 4.1 | 5.7 |
| Contusions | 2,484 | 2,255 | * | 4.4 | 4.4 | * |
| Burns | 481 | 431 | * | 0.8 | 0.8 | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | | | | | | |
| surgical procedures | 341 | 323 | * | 0.6 | 0.6 | * |
| All other current injuries | 779 | 652 | * | 1.4 | 1.3 | * |
| | | | | | | |

NOTES: n.e.c. -- not elsewhere classified.

Table 11. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons in total population and persons with activity and/or mobility limitation per year, by age and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| the second se | · | | | | | |
|---|--|--|----------------------------------|--|--|-----------------------------------|
| | | With lim | itation: | | With lin | itation: |
| Age and type of injury | All persons | Of activity | Of mobility | All persons | Of activity | Of mobility |
| All ages | Average number of injuries in thousands | | | Number pe | of injuries rsons per y | per 100 ear |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 6,446 | 1,785 | 26.8 | 29.3 | 28,3 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations | 3,053 5,252 2,725 6,717 17,655 7,656 2,233 2,176 3,777 | 482 655 394 929 1,627 1,437 * 588 | * * 384 466 * * | 1.6 2.7 1.4 3.5 9.2 4.0 1.2 1.1 2.0 | 2.2 3.0 1.8 4.2 7.4 6.5 * 2.7 | *** ** 6.1 7.4 * * |
| Under 45 years | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 40,187 | 2,564 | 260 | 29.8 | 40.6 | 23.7 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 2,572 3,715 1,870 5,026 15,247 5,172 1,752 1,835 2,998 | * 409 858 405 * | * * * * * * * | 1.9 2.8 1.4 3.7 11.3 3.8 1.3 1.4 2.2 | * 6.5 13.6 6.4 * | * * * * * * * * |
| 45 years and over | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 3,882 | 1,525 | 19.5 | 24.8 | 29.2 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 481 1,537 855 1,690 2,408 2,484 481 341 779 | 297 411 250 520 769 1,031 * * | * * * 274 466 * * | 0.8 2.7 1.5 3.0 4.2 4.4 0.8 0.6 1.4 | 1.9 2.6 1.6 3.3 4.9 6.6 * * | * * 5.3 8.9 * * |

NOTES: n.e.c. -- not elsewhere classified.

Table 12. Average annual number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by living arrangement, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | Living arrangement | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--------------------|-------------------------|--------------------|-----------------|-------|---------------------------|----------------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| Age and type of injury | Total | Living alone or | Living relat | g with tives | Total | Living alone or | Living relati | with lves | | | |
| | | relatives | Married | Other | | relatives | Married | Other | | | |
| All ages | Ave | rage number in thous | of injuri sands | les | Num | ber of inju persons pe | ies per l er year | 100 | | | |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 3,623 | 21,446 | 26,173 | 26.8 | 27.5 | 24.5 | 28.8 | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 3,053 | 375 | 779 | 1,900 | 1.6 | 2.8 | 0.9 | 2.1 | | | |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 5,252 | 278 | 2,644 | 2,330 | 2.7 | 2.1 | 3.0 | 2.6 | | | |
| Sprains and strains of back | 2,725 | * | 1,901 | 644 | 1.4 | * | 2,2 | 0.7 | | | |
| Other sprains and strains | 6,717 | 650 | 3,291 | 2,776 | 3.5 | 4.9 | 3.8 | 3.1 | | | |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 17,655 | 892 | 6,421 | 10,342 | 9.2 | 6.8 | 7.3 | 11.4 | | | |
| Contusions | 7,656 | 927 | 3,162 | 3,567 | 4.0 | 7.0 | 3.6 | 3.9 | | | |
| Burns | 2,233 | * | 1,029 | 1,114 | 1.2 | * | 1.2 | 1.2 | | | |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | 0.170 | | 501 | 1 (0 0 | | | | 1.0 | | | |
| All other automatic definition | 2,170 | * * | -521 | 1,003 | 2.0 | # | 0.6 | 1.8 | | | |
| All other current injuries | 3,777 | î. | 1,097 | 1,090 | 2.0 | ^ | 1.9 | 2.1 | | | |
| Under 45 years | | | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 40,187 | 1,820 | 13,759 | 24,609 | 29.8 | 39.8 | 29.3 | 29.5 | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 2,572 | * | 548 | 1,831 | 1.9 | * | 1.2 | 2.2 | | | |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 3,715 | * | 1,391 | 2,165 | 2.8 | * | 3.0 | 2.6 | | | |
| Sprains and strains of back | 1,870 | * | 1,167 | 556 | 1.4 | * | 2.5 | 0.7 | | | |
| Other sprains and strains | 5,026 | 308 | 2,150 | 2,569 | 3.7 | 6.7 | 4.6 | 3.1 | | | |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 15,247 | 588 | 4,737 | 9,922 | 11.3 | 12.8 | 10.1 | 11.9 | | | |
| Contusions | 5,172 | 339 | 1,722 | 3,111 | 3.8 | 7.4 | 3.7 | 3.7 | | | |
| Burns | 1,752 | * | 636 | 1,082 | 1.3 | * | 1.4 | 1.3 | | | |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | 1 995 | | 207 | 1 500 | . , | | | 1 0 | | | |
| surgical procedures | 1,835 | ж - | 287 | 1,530 | 1.4 | * | 0.0 | 1.8 | | | |
| All other current injuries | 2,990 | * | 1,120 | 1,843 | 2.2 | | 2.4 | 2.2 | | | |
| 45 years and over | | | | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,055 | 1,804 | 7,687 | 1,564 | 19.5 | 21.0 | 19.0 | 20.5 | | | |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 481 | * | * | * | 0.8 | * | * | * | | | |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 1,537 | * | 1,253 | * | 2.7 | * | 3.1 | * | | | |
| Sprains and strains of back | 855 | * | 734 | * | 1.5 | * | 1.8 | * | | | |
| Other sprains and strains | 1,690 | 342 | 1,141 | * | 3.0 | 4.0 | 2.8 | * | | | |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 2,408 | 304 | 1,684 | 419 | 4.2 | 3.5 | 4.2 | 5.5 | | | |
| Contusions | 2,484 | 588 | 1,440 | 456 | 4.4 | 6.8 | 3.6 | 6.0 | | | |
| Burns | 481 | * | 394 | * | 0.8 | * | 1.0 | * | | | |
| Adverse effects of medical/ surgical procedures | 341 | * | * | * | 0.6 | * | * | * | | | |
| All other current injuries | 779 | * | 578 | * | 1.4 | * | 1.4 | * | | | |

NOTES: n.e.c.-not elsewhere classified.

Table 13. Average quarterly number of current injuries and number of current injuries per 100 persons per quarter, by quarter, age, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | | | Quarter | | | | <u> </u> |
|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| Age and type of injury | July- Sept. | Oct Dec. | Jan Mar. | Apr June | July- Sept. | Oct Dec. | Jan Mar. | Apr June |
| All ages | Avera | Average number of injuries Number in thousands 100 p | | | | | | per arter |
| All injuries | 14,310 | 12,217 | 11,716 | 13,000 | 7.5 | 6.4 | 6.1 | 6.8 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations | 711 1,438 683 1,529 5,607 1,920 589 426 1,406 | 709 1,366 617 1,947 3,807 1,871 669 569 661 | 720 1,206 761 1,642 3,726 1,871 443 455 891 | 913 1,242 664 1,598 4,515 1,993 531 725 818 | 0.4 0.8 0.8 2.9 1.0 0.3 0.2 0.7 | 0.4 0.7 0.3 1.0 2.0 1.0 0.3 0.3 0.3 | 0.4 0.6 0.4 0.9 1.9 1.0 0.2 0.2 | 0.5 0.6 0.3 0.8 2.3 1.0 0.3 0.4 0.4 |
| Under 45 years | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 11,505 | 9,225 | 9,099 | 10,359 | 8,6 | 6.8 | 6.7 | 7.7 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations | 675 1,068 526 1,110 4,845 1,380 483 408 1,010 | 560 939 340 1,491 3,244 1,205 490 403 553 | 544 846 531 1,200 3,192 1,250 391 384 759 | 794 862 473 1,226 3,966 1,337 388 639 676 | 0.5 0.8 0.4 0.8 3.6 1.0 0.4 0.3 0.8 | 0.4 0.7 0.3 1.1 2.4 0.9 0.4 0.3 0.4 | 0.4 0.6 0.4 0.9 2.4 0.9 0.3 0.3 0.6 | 0.6 0.4 0.9 2.9 1.0 0.3 0.5 0.5 |
| 45 years and over | | | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 2,806 | 2,992 | 2,617 | 2,641 | 5.0 | 5.3 | 4.6 | 4.6 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations Sprains and strains of back | * 370 * 420 762 540 * | * 427 277 457 563 667 * | * 359 441 534 621 * | * 380 * 372 549 656 * | * 0.7 1.4 1.0 * | * 0.8 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.2 * | * 0.6 * 0.8 0.9 1.1 * | * 0.7 * 0.7 1.0 1.2 * |
| All other current injuries | 396 | * | * | * | 0.7 | * | * | * |

NOTES: n.e.c. - not elsewhere classified.

Table 14. Average annual number of current injuries, by class of accident, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | C | lass of a | accident | | |
|---|--|---|---|--|--|---|
| Sex and type of injury | A11 | Movin veh | g motor icle | While | Home | Other |
| | Classes | Tota1 | Traffic | work | · | |
| Both sexes | Average number of injuries in thou | | | | thousan | ıds |
| All injuries | 51,243 | 4,922 | 4,614 | 10,100 | 21,087 | 17,434 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations | 3,053 5,252 2,725 6,717 17,655 7,656 2,233 2,176 3,777 | 551 454 746 396 1,097 1,160 * | 551 381 693 379 1,080 1,098 432 | 314 1,138 877 1,425 3,365 1,419 682 880 | 1,375 2,013 678 2,233 8,963 3,065 1,291 1,469 | 952 1,901 568 2,974 4,939 2,415 346 2,176 1,164 |
| Male | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 29,874 | 2,274 | 2,082 | 8,823 | 9,977 | 10,735 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 1,796 3,182 1,560 3,665 10,757 4,276 1,297 919 2,423 | * * 550 604 * | * 533 542 * ••• | 262 1,049 809 1,235 2,819 1,243 581 | 742 800 275 831 4,631 1,289 596 | 706 1,324 408 1,609 3,362 1,492 * 919 724 |
| Female | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 21,368 | 2,648 | 2,532 | 1,277 | 11,110 | 6,699 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations | 1,257 2,070 1,164 3,052 6,898 3,380 936 1,257 1,353 | 360 * 551 * 547 556 * 252 | 360 * 514 * 547 556 * | * * 546 * * | 633 1,214 403 1,402 4,332 1,776 695 | * 577 1,365 1,577 923 * 1,257 440 |

NOTES: n.e.c. - not elsewhere classified.

-

Excluded from these statistics are all current injuries involving neither restricted activity nor medical attention.

The sum of data for the classes of accident (moving motor vehicle, while at work, home, other) may be greater than the total because the classes are not mutually exclusive.

Table 15. Number of current injuries per 100 persons per year, by class of accident, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | Cla | ss of acc | ident | | |
|---|---|--------------------------------------|---|---|--|---|
| Sex and type of injury | A11 | Movin veh | g motor icles | While | Home | Other |
| | classes | Total | Traffic | work | | |
| Both sexes | Number o | f injuri | es per 10 | 0 perso | ns per | year |
| All injuries | 26.8 | 2.6 | 2.4 | 5.3 | 11.0 | 9.1 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 1.6 2.7 1.4 3.5 9.2 4.0 1.2 1.1 2.0 | 0.3 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.6 * | 0.3 0.2 0.4 0.2 0.6 0.6 * | 0.2 0.6 0.5 0.7 1.8 0.7 0.7 0.4 0.5 | 0.7 1.1 0.4 1.2 4.7 1.6 0.7 0.8 | 0.5 1.0 0.3 1.6 2.6 1.3 0.2 1.1 0.6 |
| Male | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 32.3 | 2.5 | 2.2 | 9.5 | 10.8 | 11.6 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. Other fractures and dislocations | $ \begin{array}{c} 1.9\\ 3.4\\ 1.7\\ 4.0\\ 11.6\\ 4.6\\ 1.4\\ 1.0\\ 2.6\\ \end{array} $ | * * 0.6 0.7 * | * * 0.6 0.6 * | 0.3 1.1 0.9 1.3 3.0 1.3 0.6 | 0.8 0.9 0.3 0.9 5.0 1.4 0.6 | 0.8 1.4 0.4 1.7 3.6 1.6 * 1.0 0.8 |
| Female | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 21.6 | 2.7 | 2.6 | 1.3 | 11.2 | 6.8 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 1.3 2.1 1.2 3.1 7.0 3.4 0.9 1.3 1.4 | 0.4 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 * | 0.4 8 0.5 0.6 0.6 * | * * 0.6 * * | 0.6 1.2 0.4 1.4 4.4 1.8 0.7 | * 0.6 * 1.4 1.6 0.9 * 1.3 0.4 |

NOTES: n.e.c. - not elsewhere classified.

Excluded from these statistics are all current injuries involving neither restricted activity nor medical attention.

ł

The sum of data for the classes of accident (moving motor vehicle, while at work, home, other) may be greater than the total because the classes are not mutually exclusive.

Table 16. Average annual number of days of restricted activity due to current injuries,¹ by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| Sex and type of injury | All ages | Under 17 years | 17 - 24 years | 25-44 years | 45-64 years | 65 years and over |
|--|---|---|--|--|--|---|
| Both sexes | Average number of days of restricted activit in thousands | | | | | |
| All injuries | 323,748 | 62,720 | 40,139 | 92,832 | 83,128 | 44,929 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 13,578 111,691 27,724 39,778 53,845 43,556 8,854 6,733 17,988 | 3,608 21,550 1,004 7,419 15,238 4,594 3,058 3,189 3,060 | 1,879 13,019 3,517 6,588 8,170 4,495 1,059 * 1,285 | 3,407 26,947 12,931 11,232 16,634 11,551 2,669 1,102 6,359 | 2,356 32,741 7,168 10,127 9,518 12,905 1,397 1,096 5,820 | 2,329 17,433 3,104 4,412 4,285 10,012 672 1,219 1,463 |
| Male | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 182,386 | 38,415 | 26,619 | 58,585 | 44,147 | 14,619 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 7,114 64,598 15,056 23,445 33,980 19,795 5,414 2,539 10,446 | 1,386 14,271 756 4,285 9,028 2,920 1,941 1,865 1,964 | 1,063 10,228 1,920 4,393 5,300 2,546 609 * 560 | 2,206 17,853 7,735 6,553 12,250 6,134 1,692 * 3,675 | 1,354 18,236 2,893 6,363 5,479 5,462 626 * 3,547 | 1,105 4,011 1,752 1,851 1,923 2,733 2,733 * * |
| Female | | | | | | |
| All injuries | 141,361 | 24,305 | 13,519 | 34,246 | 38,981 | 30,310 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c Other fractures and dislocations | 6,465 47,093 12,668 16,334 19,865 23,761 3,441 | 2,222 7,280 3,134 6,209 1,674 1,118 | 816 2,792 1,597 2,194 2,870 1,949 * | 1,201 9,094 5,196 4,679 4,384 5,418 976 | 1,002 14,506 4,275 3,764 4,039 7,443 771 909 | 1,224 13,422 1,352 2,562 2,362 7,279 * |
| All other current injuries | 7,542 | 1,097 | 724 | 2,684 | 2,273 | 764 |

¹Excludes disability days associated with impairments due to injury. NOTE: n.e.c.-not elsewhere classified.

J,

Ŋ

Table 17. Number of days of restricted activity due to current injuries¹ per 100 persons per year, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

Under A11 17 - 2425-44 45-64 65 years Sex and type of injury 17 years and over ages vears years years Number of days of restricted activity per Both sexes 100 persons per year All injuries-----169.0 93.7 | 176.6 | 205.5 | 213.2 | 253.5 Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.------7.1 5.4 8.3 7.5 6.0 13.1 Other fractures and dislocations------58.3 32.2 57.3 59.7 84.0 98.4 Sprains and strains of back-----14.5 1.5 15.5 28.6 18.4 17.5 Other sprains and strains-----20.8 11.1 29.0 24.9 26.0 24.9 Lacerations and abrasions-----28.1 22.8 35.9 36.8 24.4 24.2 Contusions 22.7 6.9 19.8 25.6 33.1 56.5 Burns-----4.6 4.6 4.7 5.9 3.6 3.8 Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures -----3.5 4.8 2.4 2.8 6.9 * All other current injuries-----9.4 4.6 14.1 5.7 14.9 8.3 Male All injuries-----197.0 112.9 252.3 271.9 236.1 189.2 Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----7.7 4.1 10.1 10.2 7.2 14.3 Other fractures and dislocations-----69.8 41.9 82.9 96.9 97.5 51.9 Sprains and strains of back-----16.3 2.2 35.9 15.5 18.2 22.7 Other sprains and strains-----25.3 12.6 41.6 30.4 34.0 24.0 Lacerations and abrasions-----36.7 26.550.2 56.8 29.3 24.9 Contusions 21.4 8.6 24.1 28.5 29.2 35.4 Burns 5.8 5.7 5.8 7.9 3.3 * Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures----2.7 5.5 * * * * All other current injuries-----11.3 5.8 5.3 17.1 19.0 9.0 Female All injuries-----142.8 73.9 111.0 145.0 192.1 303.2 Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----6.5 6.8 6.7 5.1 4.9 12.2 Other fractures and dislocations------47.6 22.1 22,9 38.5 71.5 134.3 Sprains and strains of back-----* 13.1 22.0 21.1 12.8 13.5 Other sprains and strains-----16.5 9.5 18.0 19.8 18.6 25.6 Lacerations and abrasions------20.1 18.9 23.6 18.6 19.9 23.6 Contusions------24.0 5.1 16.0 22.9 36.7 72.8 Burns 3.5 3.4 * 4.1 3.8 * Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures-----4.2 4.0 * 2.6 4.5 12.2 All other current injuries-----7.6 3.3 5.9 11.4 11.2 7.6

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

¹Excludes disability days associated with impairments due to injury. NOTE: n.e.c.-not elsewhere classified.

Table 18. Average annual number of days of bed disability due to current injuries,¹ by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| Sex and type of injury | All ages | Under 17 years | 17-24 years | 25-44 years | 45-64 years | 65 years and over |
|--|-------------|---|--------------------|---------------------|----------------|----------------------|
| Both sexes | Ave | erage numb | er of da in the | ys of be ousands | ad disabi | lity |
| All injuries | 88,480 | 16,514 | 12,737 | 23,950 | 23,222 | 12,057 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c | 5.671 | 2 072 | 919 | 1,213 | 876 | 590 |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 29.156 | 4,608 | 3.293 | 7.025 | 9.405 | 4.825 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 9,146 | * | 1.344 | 4.053 | 2,690 | 781 |
| Other sprains and strains | 6.454 | 1,195 | 1,346 | 1,902 | 1,591 | * |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 13,607 | 3 4 5 9 | 3 335 | 3 313 | 2 467 | 1 033 |
| Contusions | 12.252 | 1.423 | 1.745 | 2,941 | 3,468 | 2,675 |
| Burns | 3,279 | 1,505 | * | 1.044 | * | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | -, | _,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | | , | | |
| surgical procedures+ | 2,912 | 1,328 | * | 581 | * | 628 |
| All other current injuries | 6,003 | 647 | 557 | 1,877 | 2,067 | 854 |
| Male | | | | } | | |
| All injuries | 45,109 | 8,330 | 7,933 | 13,524 | 11,866 | 3,457 |
| Skull fractures and head injury ne comment | 3 135 | 583 | 731 | 830 | 826 | |
| Ather fractures and dislocations | 16 763 | 2 / 53 | 2 625 | 4 751 | 5 883 | 1 051 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 4 406 | 2,400 | 2,025 | 2 400 | 08/ | 1,001 |
| Other optains and strains | 3 201 | 585 | 878 | 2,409 | 620 | * |
| Vener sprarms and scrarms | 7 522 | 1 979 | 2 208 | 1 806 | 020 | |
| | /, 525 | 1,070 | 2,290 | 1,090 | 1 060 | (() |
| | 4, JOI | 700 | 0/1 | 1,340 | 1,000 | 000 |
| Burns of the stand | 1,729 | 122 | * | 582 | | · * |
| surgical procedures | 1,238 | 938 | * | * | * | * |
| All other current injuries | 2,733 | * | * | * | 1,287 | * |
| Female | | | | | | ł |
| All injuries | 43,371 | 8,184 | 4,804 | 10,426 | 11,357 | 8,599 |
| Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c. | 2,536 | 1,489 | * | * | * | * |
| Other fractures and dislocations | 12.393 | 2,155 | 668 | 2.275 | 3.522 | 3,774 |
| Sprains and strains of back | 4,741 | * | 861 | 1.644 | 1,707 | * |
| Other sprains and strains | 3.253 | 609 | * | 937 | 971 | * |
| Lacerations and abrasions | 6.084 | 1 581 | 1 037 | 1,417 | 1,490 | 550 |
| | 7,870 | 789 | 1 074 | 1,593 | 2:400 | 2 015 |
| Rirns | 1,550 | 783 | * | *. | ***** | * |
| Adverse effects of medical/ | | 105 | | | | |
| surgical procedures | 1,674 | * | * | * | * | 628 |
| All other current injuries | 3,270 | * | * | 1,335 | 781 | 551 |

¹Excludes disability days associated with impairments due to injury. NOTE: n.e.c.-not elsewhere classified.

ì

Table 19. Number of days of bed disability due to current injuries¹ per 100 persons per year, by age, sex, and type: United States, July 1965-June 1967

Under 17 - 2425-44 45-64 A11 65 years Sex and type of injury 17 ages and over years years years years Number of days of bed disability per 100 Both sexes persons per year 46.2 24.7 56.0 53.0 59.6 68.0 All injuries------_ 4.0 2.7 2.2 Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----3.0 3.1 3.3 6.9 14.5 15.6 24.1 27.2 Other fractures and dislocations------15.2 Sprains and strains of back-----4.8 * 5.9 9.0 6.9 4.4 Other sprains and strains-----5.9 4.2 4.1 * 3.4 1.8 Lacerations and abrasions-----7.1 5.2 14.7 7.3 6.3 5.8 Contusions 2.1 6.5 8.9 15.1 6.4 7.7 Burns * 2.3 * * 2.2 1.7 Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures-----1.5 2.0 * 1.3 * 3.5 All other current injuries-----4.2 3.1 1.0 2.5 5.3 4.8 Male All injuries-----48.7 24.5 75.2 62.8 63.4 44.7 1.7 6.9 3.9 4.4 * Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----3.4 Other fractures and dislocations-----18.1 7.2 24.9 22.0 31.5 13.6 Sprains and strains of back-----4.8 * * 11.2 5.3 * Other sprains and strains-----* 3.5 1.7 8.3 4.5 3.3 5.2 * Lacerations and abrasions-----8.1 5.5 21.8 8.8 Contusions 4.7 1.9 6.4 6.3 5.7 8.5 1.9 2.1 * 2.7 * * 2.8 * * Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures-----1.3 * * All other current injuries-----* * * 6.9 * 3.0 Female All injuries-----43.8 24.9 39.4 44.1 56.0 86.0 * * Skull fractures and head injury, n.e.c.-----2.6 4.5 * * Other fractures and dislocations-----12.5 6.6 5.5 9.6 17.4 37.8 4.8 Sprains and strains of back-----* 7.0 8.4 * 7.1 Other sprains and strains-----3.3 1.9 * 4.0 4.8 * Lacerations and abrasions-----6.1 4.8 8.5 6.0 7.4 5.5 Contusions 8.0 2.4 6.7 11.8 20.2 8.8 Burns 1.6 2.4 * * * * Adverse effects of medical/surgical procedures ------1.7 * * * * 6.3 All other current injuries-----* 3.3 * 5.7 3.8 5.5

Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

Excludes disability days associated with impairments due to injury.

NOTE: n.e.c. - not elsewhere classified.

Table 20. Average population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by geographic region, residence, sex, and age: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | | Geographi | c region | | R | esidence | |
|-------------------|------------------|----------------|------------------|----------|---------|---------|--------------|--------|
| Sex and age | Total popula- | | | | | | Outside | SMSA's |
| | tion | North- east | North Central | South | West | SMSA's | Non- farm | Farm |
| Both sexes | | | Popul | ation in | thousan | ds | | |
| All ages | 191,537 | 47,803 | 53,471 | 58,766 | 31,497 | 123,183 | 57,647 | 10,707 |
| Under 45 years | 134,822 | 32,460 | 37,385 | 42,294 | 22,683 | 87,369 | 40,552 | 6,900 |
| Under 17 years | 66,921 | 15,594 | 18,802 | 21,290 | 11,235 | 42,489 | 20,622 | 3,810 |
| 17-44 years | 67,901 | 16,866 | 18,583 | 21,004 | 11,448 | 44,881 | 19,930 | 3,090 |
| 17-24 years | 22,733 | 5,394 | 6,238 | 7,347 | 3,753 | 14,715 | 6,955 | 1,063 |
| 25-44 years | 45,168 | 11,471 | 12,346 | 13,657 | 7,694 | 30,165 | 12,975 | 2,027 |
| 45 years and over | 56,715 | 15,343 | 16,086 | 16,472 | 8,814 | 35,814 | 17,094 | 3,807 |
| 45-64 years | 38,993 | 10,525 | 10,940 | 11,270 | 6,257 | 25,174 | 11,150 | 2,669 |
| 65 years and over | 17,723 | 4,818 | 5,145 | 5,202 | 2,558 | 10,640 | 5,944 | 1,138 |
| Male | | | | | | | - | |
| All ages | 92,566 | 22,939 | 25,988 | 28,282 | 15,357 | 59,270 | 27,825 | 5,470 |
| Under 45 years | 66,137 | 15,890 | 18,426 | 20,695 | 11,126 | 42,716 | 19,933 | 3,487 |
| Under 17 years | 34,038 | 7,967 | 9,541 | 10,804 | 5,726 | 21,539 | 10,539 | 1,959 |
| 17-44 years | 32,099 | 7,923 | 8,885 | 9,891 | 5,400 | 21,177 | 9,394 | 1,528 |
| 17-24 years | 10,550 | 2,490 | 2,882 | 3,428 | 1,751 | 6,750 | 3,250 | 551 |
| 25-44 years | 21,548 | 5,433 | 6,004 | 6,463 | 3,649 | 14,427 | 6,144 | 977 |
| 45 years and over | 26,429 | 7,049 | 7,562 | 7,587 | 4,231 | 16,554 | 7,892 | 1,983 |
| 45-64 years | 18,702 | 4,994 | 5,284 | 5,325 | 3,099 | 12,047 | 5,281 | 1,374 |
| 65 years and over | 7,727 | 2,055 | 2,278 | 2,262 | 1,133 | 4,507 | 2,611 | 609 |
| Female | | | | | | | | |
| All ages | 98,971 | 24,865 | 27,483 | 30,484 | 16,140 | 63,913 | 29,822 | 5,237 |
| Under 45 years | 68,685 | 16,570 | 18,959 | 21,599 | 11,557 | 44,653 | 20,619 | 3,413 |
| Under 17 years | 32,883 | 7,627 | 9,261 | 10,486 | 5,509 | 20,949 | 10,083 | 1,851 |
| 17-44 years | 35,802 | 8,943 | 9,698 | 11,113 | 6,048 | 23,704 | 10,537 | 1,562 |
| 17-24 years | 12,183 | 2,904 | 3,356 | 3,919 | 2,003 | 7,965 | 3,706 | 512 |
| 25-44 years | 23,620 | 6,039 | 6,342 | 7,194 | 4,045 | 15,738 | 6,831 | 1,050 |
| 45 years and over | 30,286 | 8,294 | 8,524 | 8,885 | 4,583 | 19,260 | 9,203 | 1,824 |
| 45-64 years | 20,290 | 5,531 | 5,657 | 5,945 | 3,158 | 13,127 | 5,869 | 1,295 |
| 65 years and over | 9,996 | 2,763 | 2,867 | 2,940 | 1,425 | 6,133 | 3,334 | 529 |

)

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, and P-60. Table 21. Average population used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by age and selected characteristics: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| | | | Insertion and a second s |
|---|--|--|---|
| Characteristic | A11 ages | Under 45 years | 45 years and over |
| Family income | Populat | ion in the | ousands |
| All incomes ¹ | 191,537 | 134,822 | 56,715 |
| Under \$5,000 | 60,557 29,412 31,145 | 36,839 15,210 21,629 | 23,718 14,202 9,516 |
| \$5,000-\$9,999 \$5,000-\$6,999 \$7,000-\$9,999 | 79,348 37,346 42,001 | 61,419 28,558 32,861 | 17,929 8,789 9,140 |
| \$10,000 and over | 43,611 | 31,991 | 11,620 |
| Living arrangement | | | |
| Total | 191,537 | 134,822 | 56,715 |
| Living alone or with nonrelatives Living with relatives: Married Other | 13,162 87,393 90,982 | 4,578 46,880 83,364 | 8,584 40,513 7,618 |
| Quarter | | | } |
| July-September- October-December- January-March- April-June- | 190,863 191,336 191,734 192,141 | 134,485 134,720 134,919 135,115 | 56,378 56,615 56,815 57,026 |
| Color | | | |
| White | 168,592 22,946 | 116,965 17,856 | 51,626 5,089 |
| Limitation status | | | |
| With limitation: | | | |
| Of mobility | 21,984 6,312 | 6,319 1,096 | 15,665 5,216 |

¹Includes unknown income.

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, and P-60. ĸ

Table 22. Average population aged 17 years and over used in obtaining rates shown in this publication, by age and educational attainment: United States, July 1965-June 1967

[Data are based on household interviews of the civilian, noninstitutional population. The survey design, general qualifications, and information on the reliability of the estimates are given in appendix I. Definitions of terms are given in appendix II]

| Education | All ages, 17 years and over | 17-44 years | 45 years and over |
|---|--------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| | Populati | on in the | ousands |
| All educational groups ¹ | 124,616 | 67,901 | 56,715 |
| Under 9 years 9-12 years | 32,871 66,312 26,103 40,209 | 8,842 43,132 16,136 26,995 | 24,029 23,180 9,966 13,214 |
| 13 years and over 13-15 years 16 years and over | 23,744 13,107 10,638 | 15,479 8,879 6,600 | 8,265 4,227 4,038 |

¹Includes unknown education.

NOTE: For official population estimates for more general use, see Bureau of the Census reports on the civilian population of the United States, in <u>Current Population Reports</u>: Series P-20, P-25, and P-60.

APPENDIX I

TECHNICAL NOTES ON METHODS

Background of This Report

This report is one of a series of statistical reports prepared by the National Health Survey. It is based on information collected in a continuing nationwide sample of households in the Health Interview Survey, a major part of the program.

The Health Interview Survey utilized a questionnaire which, in addition to personal and demographic characteristics, obtains information on illnesses, injuries, chronic conditions and impairments, and other health topics. As data relating to each of these various broad topics are tabulated and analyzed, separate reports are issued which cover one or more of the specific topics. The present report is based on the consolidated sample for 104 weeks of interviewing ending June 1967.

The population covered by the sample for the Health Interview Survey is the civilian, noninstitutional population of the United States living at the time of the interview. The sample does not include members of the Armed Forces, U.S. nationals living in foreign countries, or crews of vessels. It should also be noted that the estimates shown do not represent a complete inventory of injuries for the specified calendar period since no adjustment has been made for persons who incurred injuries during the 2-week-recall period but who died prior to the interview.

Statistical Design of the Health Interview Survey

General plan.—The sampling plan of the survey follows a multistage probability design which permits a continuous sampling of the civilian population of the United States. The first stage of this design consists of drawing a sample of 357 from about 1,900 geographically defined primary sampling units (PSU's) into which the United States has been divided. A PSU is a county, a group of contiguous counties, or a standard metropolitan statistical area.

With no loss in general understanding, the remaining stages can be combined and treated in this discussion as an ultimate stage. Within PSU's, then, ultimate stage units called segments are defined in such a manner that each segment contains an expected nine households. A segment consists of a cluster of neighboring households or addresses. Two general types of segments are used: (1) area segments which are defined geographically, and (2) B segments which are defined from a list of addresses from the Decennial Census and Survey of Construction. Each week a random sample of about 90 segments is drawn. In the approximately 800 households in these segments, household members are interviewed concerning factors related to health.

Since the household members interviewed each week are a representative sample of the population, samples for successive weeks can be combined into larger samples. Thus the design permits both continuous measurement of characteristics of high incidence or prevalence in the population and, through the larger consolidated samples, more detailed analysis of less common characteristics and smaller categories. The continuous collection has administrative and operational advantages as well as technical assets since it permits field work to be handled with an experienced, stable staff.

Sample size and geographic detail.—The national sample plan for the 24-month period ending in June included about 268,000 persons from 84,000 households in about 9,400 segments.

The overall sample was designed in such a fashion that tabulations can be provided for each of the major geographic regions and for urban and rural sectors of the United States.

Collection of data.—Field operations for the household survey are performed by the Bureau of the Census under specifications established by the National Center for Health Statistics. In accordance with these specifications the Bureau of the Census selects the sample, conducts the field interviewing as an agent of the Center, and performs a manual editing and coding of the questionnaires. The Health Interview Survey, using Center electronic computers, carries out further editing and tabulates the edited data.

Estimating methods.—Each statistic produced by the survey—for example, the number of fractures sustained during a specified period—is the result of two stages of ratio estimation. In the first of these the control factor is the ratio of the 1960 decennial population count to the 1960 estimated population in the National Health Survey's first-stage sample of PSU's. These factors are applied for some 25 color-residence classes.

Later, ratios of sample-produced estimates of the population to official Bureau of the Census figures for current population in about 60 age-sex-color classes are computed and serve as second-stage factors for ratio estimating.

The effect of the ratio-estimating process is to make the sample more closely representative of the population by age, sex, color, and residence, thus reducing sampling variance.

As noted, each week's sample represents the population living during that week and characteristics of this population. Consolidation of samples over a time period, say a calendar quarter, produces estimates of average characteristics of the U.S. population for that calendar quarter. Similarly, population data for a year are averages of the four quarterly figures.

For statistics measuring the number of occurrences during a specified time period, such as the number of disability days due to injuries, a similar computational procedure is used, but the statistics are interpreted differently. For these items, the questionnaire asks for the respondent's experience over the 2 calendar weeks prior to the week of interview. In such instances the estimated quarterly total for the statistic is simply 6.5 times the average 2-week estimate produced by the 13 successive samples taken during the period. The annual total is the sum of the four quarters. Thus, the experience of persons interviewed during a year-experience which actually occurred for each person in a 2-calendar-week interval prior to week of interview-is treated as though it measured the total of such experience during the year. Such interpretation leads to no significant bias.

General Qualifications

Nonresponse.—Data were adjusted for nonresponse by a procedure which imputes to persons in a household which was not interviewed the characteristics of persons in households in the same segment which were interviewed. The total noninterview rate was 5 percent— 1 percent was refusal, and the remainder was primarily due to the failure to find any eligible household respondent after repeated trials.

The interview process.—The statistics presented in this report are based on replies secured in interviews of persons in the sampled households. Each person 19 years of age and over, available at the time of interview, was interviewed individually. Proxy respondents within the household were employed for children and for adults not available at the time of the interview, provided the respondent was closely related to the person about whom information was being obtained. There are limitations to the accuracy of diagnostic and other information collected in household interviews. For diagnostic information, the household respondent can, at best, pass on to the interviewer only the information the physician has given the family. For conditions not medically attended, diagnostic information is often no more than a description of symptoms. However, other facts such as the number of disability days caused by the condition can be obtained more accurately from household members than from any other source since only the persons concerned are in a position to report this information.

Rounding of numbers.—The original tabulations on which the data in this report are based show all estimates to the nearest whole unit. All consolidations were made from the original tabulations using the estimates to the nearest unit. In the final published tables the figures are rounded to the nearest thousand, although these are not necessarily accurate to that detail. Devised statistics such as rates and percent distributions are computed after the estimates on which these are based have been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Population figures.—Some of the published tables include population figures for specified categories, Except for certain overall totals by age and sex, which are adjusted to independent estimates, these figures are based on the sample of households in the National Health Survey. These are given primarily to provide denominators for rate computation and for this purpose are more appropriate for use with the accompanying measures of health characteristics than other population data that may be available. In some instances these will permit users to recombine published data into classes more suitable to their specific needs. With the exception of the overall totals by age and sex mentioned above, the population figures differ from corresponding figures (which are derived from different sources) published in reports of the Bureau of the Census. For population data for general use, see the official estimates presented in Bureau of the Census reports in the P-20, P-25, and P-60 series.

Reliability of Estimates

Since the estimates are based on a sample, they will differ somewhat from the figures that would have been obtained if a complete census had been taken using the same schedules, instructions, and interviewing personnel and procedures. As in any survey, the results are also subject to measurement error.

The standard error is primarily a measure of sampling variability, that is, the variations that might occur by chance because only a sample of the population is surveyed. As calculated for this report, the standard error also reflects part of the variation which arises in the measurement process. It does not include estimates of any biases which might lie in the data. The chances are about 68 out of 100 that an estimate from the sample would differ from a complete census by less than the standard error. The chances are about 95 out of 100 that the difference would be less than twice the standard error and about 99 out of 100 that it would be less than 2½ times as large.

The relative standard error of an estimate is obtained by dividing the standard error of the estimate by the estimate itself and is expressed as a percentage of the estimate. Included in this appendix are charts from which the relative standard errors can be determined for estimates shown in the report. In order to derive relative errors which would be applicable to a wide variety of health statistics and which could be prepared at a moderate cost, a number of approximations were required. As a result, the charts provide an estimate of the approximate relative standard error rather than the precise error for any specific aggregate or percentage.

Three classes of statistics for the health survey are identified for purposes of estimating variances.

Narrow range. — This class consists of (1) statistics which estimate a population attribute, e.g., the number of persons in a particular income group, and (2) statistics for which the measure for a single individual for the period of reference is usually either 0 or 1, on occasion may take on the value 2, and very rarely 3.

Medium range.—This class consists of other statistics for which the measure for a single individual for the period of reference will rarely lie outside the range 0 to 5.

Wide range.—This class consists of statistics for which the measure for a single individual for the period of reference frequently will range from 0 to a number in excess of 5, e.g., the number of days of bed disability experienced during the year.

In addition to classifying variables according to whether they are narrow-, medium-, or wide-range, statistics in the survey are further defined as:

- Type A.—Statistics on prevalence and incidence data for which the period of reference in the questionnaire is 12 months.
- *Type B.*—Incidence-type statistics for which the period of reference in the questionnaire is 2 weeks.
- *Type C.*—Statistics for which the reference period is 6 months.

Only the charts on sampling error applicable to data contained in this report are presented.

General rules for determining relative sampling errors.—The "guide" on page 41, together with the following rules, will enable the reader to determine approximate relative standard errors from the charts for estimates presented in this report.

- Rule 1. Estimates of aggregates: Approximate relative standard errors for estimates of aggregates such as the number of persons with a given characteristic are obtained from appropriate curves on pages 42 and 43. The number of persons in the total U.S. population or in an age-sex class of the total population is adjusted to official Bureau of the Census figures and is not subject to sampling error.
- Rule 2. Estimates of percentages in a percent distribution: Relative standard errors for percentages in a percent distribution of a total are obtained from appropriate curves on pages 44-46. For values which do not fall on one of the curves presented in the charts, visual interpolation will provide a satisfactory approximation.
- Rule 3. Estimates of rates where the numerator is a subclass of the denominator: (Not required for statistics presented in this report.)
- Rule 4. Estimates of rates where the numerator is not a subclass of the denominator: This rule applies where a unit of the numerator often occurs more than once for any one unit in the denominator. For example, in the computation of the number of persons injured per 100 currently employed persons per year, it is possible that a person in the denominator could have sustained more than one of the injuries included in the numerator. Approximate relative standard errors for rates of this kind may be computed as follows:
 - (a) Where the denominator is the total U.S. population or includes all persons in one or more of the age-sex groups of the total population, the relative error of the rate is equivalent to the relative error of the numerator which can be obtained directly from the appropriate chart.
 - (b) In other cases, obtain the relative standard error of the numerator and of the denominator from the appropriate curve. Square each of these relative errors, add the resulting values, and extract the square root of the sum. This procedure will result in an upper bound and often will overstate the error.

The code shown below identifies the appropriate curve to be used in estimating the relative standard error of the statistic described. The four components of each code describe the statistic as follows:

į

(1) A = aggregate, P = percentage; (2) the number of calendar quarters of data collection; (3) the type of the statistic as described on page 40; and (4) the range of the statistic as described on page 40,

| | Use: | | | | | | |
|---|-----------|------------------------------|----------|--|--|--|--|
| Statistic | Rule | Gode on | page | | | | |
| Number of: Persons in the U.S. population, or any age-sex category thereof | Not subje | ect to sampling error | | | | | |
| Persons in any other population group | 1 | A8AN | 42 | | | | |
| Injuries: Per year | 1 | A8BN | 42 | | | | |
| Per quarter | 1 | A2BN | 43 | | | | |
| Disability days per year | 1 | A8BW | 42 | | | | |
| Persons injured per year | 1 | A8BN | 42 | | | | |
| Percentage distribution of: Persons in a population group | 2 | P8AN-M | 44 | | | | |
| Injuries in a year | 2 | P8BN-M | 45 | | | | |
| Disability days in a year | 2 | P8BW | 46 | | | | |
| Incidence rates for injuries; Per 100 total U.S. population or per 100 persons in any age-sex group of the total U.S. population; | | | | | | | |
| Per year | 4(a) | A8BN | 42 | | | | |
| Per quarter | 4(a) | A2BN | 43 | | | | |
| Per 100 persons in any other population group per year | 4(b) | Numer.: A8BN | 42 | | | | |
| Number of disability days; Per 100 total U.S. population or per 100 persons in any age-sex group of the total U.S. population per year | 4(a) | ASBW | 42 | | | | |
| Per case for injuries per year | 4(b) | Numer.: A8BW Denom.: A8BN | 42 42 | | | | |

Relative standard errors for aggregates based on eight quarters of data collection for data of all types and ranges



Example of use of chart: An aggregate of 5,000,000 (on scale at bottom of chart) for a Narrow range type A statistic (code: A&AN) has a relative standard error of 1.9 percent, read from scale at left side of chart, or a standard error of 95,000 (1.9 percent of 5,000,000). For a Wide range type B statistic (code: A&BW), an aggregate of 10,000,000 has a relative error of 9.3 percent or a standard error of 930,000 (9.3 percent of 10,000,000).



Example of use of chart: An aggregate of 2,000,000 (on scale at bottom of chart) for a Narrow range Type A statistic (code: A2AN) has a relative standard error of 5.2 percent, read from scale at left side of chart, or a standard error of 104,000 (5.2 percent of 2,000,000). For a Wide range Type B statistic (code: A2BW), an aggregate of 6,000,000 has a relative error of 22.2 percent or a standard error of 1,332,000 (22.2 percent of 6,000,000).

Relative standard errors for percentages based on eight quarters of data collection for type A data, Narrow and Medium range



(Base of percentage shown on curves in millions)

Estimated percentage

Example of use of chart: An estimate of 20 percent (on scale at bottom of chart) based on an estimate of 10,000,000 has a relative standard error of 2.8 percent (read from the scale at the left side of the chart), the point at which the curve for a base of 10,000,000 intersects the vertical line for 20 percent. The scandard error in percentage points is equal to 20 percent X 2.8 percent or 0.56 percentage points.



.1 Estimated percentage Example of use of chart: An estimate of 20 percent (on scale at bottom of chart) based on an estimate of 10,000,000 has a relative standard error of 13.8 percent (read from scale

an estimate of 10,000,000 has a relative standard error of 13.8 percent (read from scale at the left side of the chart), the point at which the curve for a base of 10,000,000 intersects the vertical line for 20 percent. The standard error in percentage points is equal to 20 percent X 13.8 percent or 2.8 percentage points.

Relative standard errors for percentages based on eight quarters of data collection for type B data, Wide range



Example of use of chart: An estimate of 20 percent (on scale at bottom of chart) based on an estimate of 10,000,000 has a relative standard error of 19.2 percent (read from scale at the left side of the chart), the point at which the curve for a base of 10,000,000 intersects the vertical line for 20 percent. The standard error in percentage points is equal to 20 percent X 19.2 percent or 3.8 percentage points.

APPENDIX II

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT

Terms Relating to Persons Injured

Injury condition.—An injury condition, or simply an injury, is a condition of the type that is classified to the nature of injury code numbers (N800-N999) in the International Classification of Diseases. In addition to fractures, lacerations, contusions, burns, and so forth, which are commonly thought of as injuries, this group of codes includes effects of exposure such as sunburn, adverse reactions to immunizations and other medical procedures, and poisonings. Unless otherwise specified, the term injury is used to cover all of these.

Since a person may sustain more than one injury in a single accident, e.g., a broken leg and laceration of the scalp, the number of injury conditions may exceed the number of persons injured.

Statistics of acute injury conditions include only those injuries which involved at least one full day of restricted activity or medical attendance.

Person injured.—A person injured is one who has sustained one injury or more in an accident or in some type of nonaccidental violence (see definition of "Injury condition" above). Each time a person is involved in an accident or in nonaccidental violence causing injury that results in at least one full day of restricted activity or medical attention, he is included in the statistics as a separate "person injured," hence, one person may be included more than once.

The number of persons injured is not equivalent to the number of "accidents" for several reasons: (1) the term "accident" as commonly used may not involve injury at all; (2) more than one injured person may be involved in a single accident so that the number of accidents resulting in injury would be less than the number of persons injured in accidents; and (3) the term "accident" ordinarily implies an accidental origin, whereas "persons injured" as used in the National Health Survey includes persons whose injury resulted from certain nonaccidental violence.

The number of persons injured in a specified time interval is always equal to or less than the incidence of injury conditions since one person may incur more than one injury in a single accident.

Terms Relating to Chronic Conditions

Condition.—A morbidity condition, or simply a condition, is any entry on the questionnaire which describes a departure from a state of physical or mental wellbeing. It results from a positive response to one of a series of "illness-recall" questions. In the coding and tabulating process, conditions are selected or classified according to a number of different criteria such as whether they were medically attended, whether they resulted in disability, or whether they were acute or chronic, or according to the type of disease, injury, impairment, or symptom reported. For the purposes of each published report or set of tables, only those conditions recorded on the questionnaire which satisfy certain stated criteria are included.

Conditions, except impairments, are coded by type according to the International Classification of Diseases with certain modifications adopted to make the code more suitable for a household-interview-type survey.

Chronic condition.—A condition is considered to be chronic if (1) it is described by the respondent in terms of one of the chronic diseases on the "Check List of Chronic Conditions" or in terms of one of the types of impairments on the "Check List of Impairments" or (2) the condition is described by the respondent as having been first noticed more than 3 months before the week of the interview.

Impairments.—Impairments are chronic or permanent defects, usually static in nature, resulting from disease, injury, or congenital malformation. They represent decrease or loss of ability to perform various functions, particularly those of the musculoskeletal system and the sense organs. All impairments are classified by means of a special supplementary code for impairments. Hence code numbers for impairments in the International Classification of Diseases are not used. In the Supplementary Code, impairments are grouped according to type of functional impairment and etiology.

Terms Relating to Disability

Chronic activity limitation.—Persons with chronic conditions are classified into four categories according to the extent to which their activities are limited at present as a result of these conditions. Since the usual activities of preschool children, school-age children, housewives, and workers and other persons differ, a different set of criteria is used for each group. There is a general similarity between them, however, as will be seen in the descriptions of the four categories below:

1. Persons unable to carry on major activity for their group (major activity refers to ability to work, keep house, or go to school)

Preschool children: ordinary play with other children. School-age children: Housewives: Workers and all

other persons: inability to work at a job or business.

- 2. Persons limited in the amount or kind of major activity performed (major activity refers to ability to work, keep house, or go to school) Preschool children: limited in the amount or kind of play with other children, e.g., need special rest periods, cannot play strenuous games, cannot play for long periods at a time.
 - School-age children: limited to certain types of schools or in school attendance, e.g., need special schools or special teaching, cannot go to school full time or for long periods at a time. Housewives: limited in amount or kind of housework, i.e., cannot lift children, wash or iron, or do housework for long periods at a time.

Workers and all other persons: limited in amount or kind of work, e.g., need special working aids or special rest periods at work, cannot work full time or for long periods at a time, cannot do strenuous work. 3. *Persons not limited in major activity but otherwise limited* (major activity refers to ability to work, keep house, or go to school)

Preschool children: not classified in this category.

| School-age children: | not limited in going to school but limited in participation in athletics or other extracurricular activities |
|----------------------|---|
| Housewives: | not limited in housework but limited in other ac- |
| | tivities such as church, clubs, hobbies, civic projects, or shopping. |
| Workers and all | |
| other persons: | not limited in regular work activities but limit- ed in other activities such as church, clubs, hobbies, civic projects, sports, or games. |

4. *Persons not limited in activities* Includes persons with chronic conditions whose activities are not limited in any of the ways

described above. *Chronic mobility limitation.*—Persons with chronic conditions are classified into four (or six) categories according to the extent to which their mobility is limited at present as a result of these conditions. The categories are:

- 1. Confined to the house.—Confined to the house all or most of the time.
 - A. Confined to bed.—Must stay in bed all or most of the time.
 - B. Not confined to bed.—Must stay in the house all or most of the time.
- 2. Needs help in getting around.—Able to go outside but needs the help of another person or of a special aid in getting around outside.
 - A. Of another person.—Needs the help of another person in getting around inside or outside the house.
 - B. Of special aid.—Needs the help of some special aid such as a cane or wheelchair in getting around inside or outside the house.
- 3. *Has trouble getting around alone.*—Does not need the help of another person or a special aid but has trouble in getting around freely.
- 4. Not limited in mobility.—Not limited in any of the ways described above.

Disability day.—The following terms are used to describe disability resulting from illness or injury: days of restricted activity, days of bed disability, hospital days, and days lost from work or school. All hospital days are, by definition, days of bed disability; all days of bed disability are, by definition, days of restricted activity. The converse form of these statements is, of course, not true. Days lost from work and days lost from school are special terms which apply to the currently employed and the school-age populations only, but these, too, are days of restricted activity. Hence, "restricted activity" is the most inclusive term used to describe the disability reported in the interview. Certain of the terms used in connection with disability measures are defined more explicitly below.

Restricted-activity day.—A day of restricted activity is one on which a person substantially reduces the amount of activity normal for that day because of a specific illness or injury. The type of reduction varies with the age and occupation of the individual as well as with the day of the week or season of the year. Restricted activity covers the range from substantial reduction of activity to complete inactivity for the entire day.

Bed-disability day.—A day of bed disability is one on which a person stays in bed for all or most of the day because of a specific illness or injury. All or most of the day is defined as more than half the daylight hours. All hospital days for inpatients are considered to be days of bed disability even if the patient was not actually in bed at the hospital.

Work-loss day.—A day is counted as lost from work if the person would have been going to work at a job or business that day but instead lost the entire workday because of an illness or an injury. If the person's regular workday is less than a whole day and the entire workday was lost, it would be counted as a whole workday lost. Work-loss days are determined only for currently employed persons 17 years of age and over.

Classification of injured persons by activity restrictions or medical attendance. — The classification of injured persons by activity restriction or medical attendance is based upon the classification of the injury. (See definitions that follow for activity-restricting injury, bed-disability injury, work- or school-loss injury, and medically attended injury.) For example, a person may have received several injuries in a single accident; if one of the injuries involved one day or more of restricted activity, one day or more in bed, or medical attendance, the person injured would correspondingly be classified as with restricted activity, with bed disability, or medically attended.

Activity-restricting injury.—An activity-restricting injury is an injury which has caused at least one day of restricted activity. (See definition of "Restrictedactivity day.") The incidence of activity-restricting injuries is estimated from the number of such injuries reported as having occurred in the 2 calendar weeks before the interview week. For this reason, an injury which did not result in restricted activity until after the end of the 2-week period in which it occurred is not classified as an activity-restricting injury.

Bed-disabling injury.—An injury resulting in at least 1 day of bed disability is called a bed-disabling injury. (See also definition of "Activity-restricting injury.")

Work- or school-loss injury.—An injury resulting in at least 1 day of work or school loss is called a workloss injury or a school-loss injury. (See also definition of "Activity-restricting injury.")

Medically attended injury.—An injury for which a physician was consulted is called a medically attended injury. Consulting a physician includes consultation in person or by telephone for treatment or advice. Advice from the physician transmitted to the patient through the nurse is counted as medical consultation as well as visits to physicians in clinics or hospitals. If at one visit the physician is consulted about more than one injury for each of several patients, each injury is counted as medically attended.

A parent consulting a physician about a child's injury is counted as medical consultation about that injury even if the child was not seen by the physician at that time.

For the purpose of this definition "physician" includes doctors of medicine and osteopathic physicians. The term "doctor" is used in the interview, rather than "physician," because of the need to keep to popular usage. However, the concept toward which all instructions are directed is that which is described here.

An injury is counted as medically attended if a physician was consulted about it at its onset or at any time thereafter. However, the first medical attention for an injury that was experienced during the 2-week period prior to the household interview may not occur until after the date of the interview. Such cases are necessarily treated as though there had been no medical attention.

Terms Relating to Class of Accident

Class of accident.-Injuries, injured persons, and resulting days of disability may be grouped according to class of accident. This is a broad classification of the types of event which resulted in persons being injured. Most of these events are accidents in the usual sense of the word, but some are other kinds of mishap such as overexposure to the sun or adverse reactions to medical procedures, and others are nonaccidental violence such as attempted suicide. The classes of accidents are: (1) moving motor vehicle accidents, (2) accidents occurring while at work, (3) home accidents, and (4) other accidents. These categories are not mutually exclusive. For example, a person may be injured in a moving motor vehicle accident which occurred while the person was at home or at work. The accident class "motor vehicle" includes "home motor vehicle" and "while at work motor vehicle," Similarly, the classes while at work and home include duplicated counts, e.g., motor vehicle while at work is included under "while at work."

Motor vehicle accident. —The class of accident is "motor vehicle" if a motor vehicle was involved in any way. Thus, it is not restricted to moving motor vehicles or to persons riding in motor vehicles. A motor vehicle is any mechanically or electrically powered device, not operated on rails, upon which or by which any person or property may be transported or drawn upon a land highway. Any object such as a trailer, coaster, sled, or wagon being towed by a motor vehicle is considered a part of the motor vehicle. Devices used solely for moving persons or materials within the confines of a building and its premises are not counted as motor vehicles.

Moving motor vehicle.—The accident is classified as "moving motor vehicle" if at least one of the motor vehicles involved in the accident was moving at the time of the accident. This category is subdivided into "traffic" and "nontraffic."

Moving motor vehicle traffic accident.—The accident is classified as "traffic" if it occurred on a public highway. It is considered to have occurred on the highway if it occurred wholly on the highway, if it originated on the highway, if it terminated on the highway, or if it involved a vehicle partially on the highway. A public highway is the entire width between boundary lines of every way or place of which any part is open to the use of the public for the purposes of vehicular traffic as a matter of right or custom.

Moving motor vehicle nontraffic accident.—The accident is classified as "nontraffic" if it occurred entirely in any place other than a public highway.

Nonmoving motor vehicle.— The accident is classified as "nonmoving motor vehicle" if the motor vehicle was not moving at the time of the accident.

Accident while at work.—The class of accident is "while at work" if the injured person was 17 years of age or over and was at work at a job or a business at the time the accident happened.

Home accident.—The class of accident is "home" if the injury occurred either inside the house or outside the house. "Outside the house" refers to the yard, buildings, and sidewalks on the property. "Home" includes not only the person's own home but also any other home in which he might have been when he was injured.

Other.—The class of accident is "other" if the occurrence of injury cannot be classified in one or more of the first three class-of-accident categories (i.e., moving motor vehicle, while at work, or home). This category therefore includes persons injured in public places (e.g., tripping and falling in a store or on a public sidewalk), and also nonaccidental injuries such as homicidal and suicidal attempts. The survey does not cover the military population, but current disability of various types resulting from prior injury occurring while the person was in the Armed Forces is covered and is included in this class. The class also includes mishaps for which the class of accident could not be ascertained.

Demographic Terms

Age.—The age recorded for each person is the age at last birthday. Age is recorded in single years and grouped in a variety of distributions depending upon the purpose of the table.

Region.—For the purpose of classifying the population by geographic area, the States are grouped into four regions. These regions, which correspond to those used by the U.S. Bureau of the Census, are as follows:

Region States Included

| Northeast Ma | aine, New Hampshire, Vermont, |
|------------------|-----------------------------------|
| Ma | assachusetts. Rhode Island. |
| Co | onnecticut, New York, |
| Ne | ew Jersey, Pennsylvania |
| North Central Mi | ichigan, Ohio, Indiana, Illinois, |
| Wi | isconsin, Minnesota, Iowa, |
| Mi | issouri, North Dakota, |
| So | uth Dakota, Nebraska, Kansas |
| South De | elaware, Maryland, District of |
| Co | olumbia, Virginia, West Virginia, |
| No | orth Carolina, South Carolina, |
| Ge | eorgia, Florida, Kentucky, |
| Τe | ennessee, Alabama, Mississippi, |
| Ar | kansas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, |
| Τe | exas |
| West Mo | ontana, Idaho, Wyoming, |
| Co | olorada, New Mexico, Arizona, |
| Ut | ah, Nevada, Washington, Alaska, |
| Or | regon, California, Hawaii |

Residence.— The place of residence of a member of the civilian, noninstitutional population is classified as inside a standard metropolitan statistical area (SMSA) or outside an SMSA according to farm or nonfarm residence.

Standard metropolitan statistical areas.—The definitions and titles of SMSA's are established by the U.S. Bureau of the Budget with the advice of the Federal Committee on Standard Metropolitan Statistical Areas. There were 212 SMSA's, as defined for the 1960 decennial census, for which data may be provided for places of residence in the Health Interview Survey.

The definition of an individual SMSA involves two considerations: first, a city or cities of specified population which constitute the central city and identify the county in which it is located as the central county; and, second, economic and social relationships with contiguous counties (except in New England) which are metropolitan in character, so that the periphery of the specific metropolitan area may be determined. SMSA's are not limited by State boundaries, Farm and nonfarm residence.—The population residing outside SMSA's is subdivided into the farm population, which comprises all non-SMSA residents living on farms, and the nonfarm population, which comprises the remaining non-SMSA population. The farm population includes persons living on places of 10 acres or more from which sales of farm products amounted to \$50 or more during the previous 12 months or on places of less than 10 acres from which sales of farm products amounted to \$250 or more during the preceding 12 months. Other persons living in non-SMSA territory were classified as nonfarm if their household paid rent for the house but their rent did not include any land used for farming.

"Sales of farm products" refer to the gross receipts from the sale of field crops, vegetables, fruits, nuts, livestock and livestock products (milk, wool, etc.), poultry and poultry products, and nursery and forest products produced on the place and sold at any time during the preceding 12 months.

Income of family or of unrelated individuals.—Each member of a family is classified according to the total income of the family of which he is a member. Within the household all persons related to each other by blood, marriage, or adoption constitute a family. Unrelated individuals are classified according to their own income.

The income recorded is the total of all income received by members of the family (or by an unrelated individual) in the 12-month period preceding the week of interview. Income from all sources is included, e.g., wages, salaries, rents from property, pensions, help from relatives, and so forth.

Color.—In this report, the population has been subdivided into two groups according to "white" and "nonwhite." "Nonwhite" includes Negro, American Indian, Chinese, Japanese, and so forth. Mexican persons are included with "white" unless definitely known to be Indian or of another nonwhite race.

Education.—Each person aged 17 or older is classified by education in terms of the highest grade of school completed. Only grades completed in regular schools, where persons are given a formal education, are included. A "regular" school is one which advances

a person toward an elementary or high school diploma, or a college, university, or professional school degree. Thus, education in vocational, trade, or business schools outside the regular school system is not counted in determining the highest grade of school completed.

Living arrangement.—The three categories of living arrangements shown in this report are as follows:

- 1. Living alone or with nonrelatives.—Living alone is defined as persons living in one-member households. Living with nonrelatives is defined as persons living in a household with another person or persons, none of whom are related to him by blood, marriage, or adoption.
- 2. Living with relatives—married.— This category includes married persons who are living in a household with another person or persons, of whom one or more are related to him by blood, marriage, or adoption. Persons with commonlaw marriages are considered to be married. For purposes of this category "married" excludes widowed, divorced, or separated. Persons whose only marriage was annulled are counted as "never married."
- 3. Living with relatives—other.—This category includes persons who are widowed, divorced, separated, or never married who are living in a household with another person or pe. sons, of whom one or more are related to him by blood, marriage, or adoption. Persons whose only marriage was annulled are counted as "never married." "Separated" refers to married persons who have a legal separation or who have parted because of marital discord.

Quarter.— The quarters used by the National Health Survey are actually 13-week periods rather than 3 calendar months. Since each 13-week period begins on a Monday and ends on a Sunday, the actual dates of the beginning and end of each 13-week period may overlap into another calendar quarter. Therefore, the time periods in the table headings are the approximate rather than the precise periods during which the interviewing was conducted.

APPENDIX III. QUESTIONNAIRE

PROBE QUESTIONS

| THIS SUI LAST RED | RVEY COVERS ALL KINDS OF ILLNESSES. THESE FIRST QUESTIONS REFER TO WEEK AND THE WEEK BEFORE, THAT IS, THE 2-WEEK PERIOD OUTLINED IN ON THIS CALENDAR. Hand calendar to respondent and ask 8a. | C Yes | ∏ No |
|--------------------------|---|-------|-------|
| 8a. WAS | SICK AT ANY TIME LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE (THE 2 WEEKS SHOWN ON THAT CALENDAR)? | | |
| b. WHA c. DID | T WAS THE MATTER? HAVE ANYTHING ELSE DURING THAT 2-WEEK PERIOD? | | |
| 9a. <u>LAS</u> 1 | T WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE, DID – – TAKE ANY MEDICINE OR TREATMENT FOR ANY CONDITION (BESIDES WHICH YOU TOLD ME ABOUT)? R WHAT CONDITION? | Yes | [] No |
| c. DID | TAKE ANY MEDICINE FOR ANY OTHER CONDITION? | | |
| 10a. <u>LA:</u> b. WH | <u>ST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE,</u> DID HAVE ANY ACCIDENTS OR INJURIES? AT WERE THEY? | Yes | N₀ |
| c. DID |) HAVE ANY OTHER ACCIDENTS OR INJURIES DURING THAT 2-WEEK PERIOD? | | |
| 11a. DIC |) <u>Ever</u> have an (any other) accident or injury that still bothers Him or Affects Him in any way? | Yes | □ No |
| b. IN I | WHAT WAY DOES IT BOTHER HIM? Record present effects. | | |
| 12. Op | en your Flashcard booklet to Card A and read both sides of Card A (A-1, A-2) condition by condition; record in his column any conditions mentioned for the person. | Yes | ∏ No |
| 13. Tu | rn to Card B and read both sides of Card B (B-1, B-2), condition by condition; record in his column any conditions mentioned for the person. | Yes | ∏ No |
| 14a. DO | ES HAVE ANY OTHER AILMENTS, CONDITIONS, OR PROBLEMS WITH HIS HEALTH? | Yes | □ No |
| b. ₩H | AT IS THE CONDITION? Record condition itself if still present; otherwise record present effects. | | |
| c. AN | Y OTHER PROBLEMS WITH HIS HEALTH? | | |
| | | | |

CONDITION PAGES

| Description and or multimeter in the original international and an elements in the international internatina international international international in | CONDITION NO. 1 | l. Person number | Write in and mark | | F | ^D erson number | |
|---|---|--|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------------|---|--|
| As for all conditions 2. DD EVER AT ARY TWE TALK TO A DOCTOR ABOUT HIS? No. No. <td>Enter person number and "name of condition" and ask question 2.</td> <td>Name of condition</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> | Enter person number and "name of condition" and ask question 2. | Name of condition | | | | | |
| Example These of condition* entry in hear 2 and examples the direction of hear 2 integrations for an of the Convert degree the direction of hear 2 conditions of the convert degree the direction of the convert degree the direction of hear 2 conditions of the convert degree the direction of hear 2 conditions of the convert degree the direction of hear 2 conditions of the convert degree the direction of the | Ask for all conditions | 2. DID EVER <u>AT ANY TIME</u> T | ALK TO A DOCTOR ABOUT H | \$? | ł | S Yes O | No V O O |
| If "Decise and late of read B. WHAT DD THE GOUTOR SAY IT WAST DID HE GIVE IT A If "Decise and late of read WEDIGAL NAME? If "Decise and late of read No. of this If "Decise and late of read Decise and late of read If the entry for the entry for the could of the entry for the entry | Examine "Name of condition" entry in Item 1 and mark one box. | Accident or Conc injury-Go to 4 Ca | dition on rd C-Go to 9 D Go to 3a. | Question number |) Marada 🗍 | ASHINGTON US 8 9 10 11 12 13 | E 14 н соунсот с о о о о о о |
| Jb. WHAT WAS THE CAUSE OF? | If "Doctor talked to", ask: If "Doctor not talked to" record adequate description of condition or illness. | 3a. WHAT DID THE DOCTOR SAY I Medical Name? | T WAS? DID HE GIVE IT A | Cond.,. |) | | |
| Accident or injury Act are 35 factulate the work: Act and the work: Act are 35 factulate the work: Act are 35 factulates the factulates the factulates the factulates the fac | | 36. WHAT WAS THE CAUSE OF? | / | <u>conditi</u> | on | : | 1. a 1. 1. 4. |
| If dar atty in 5 or 85 includes the words: Sc. WHAT KIND OF (5 17? Including the second sec | | Co to 4 | | Mark one | | Chrenic O | Acute O |
| Anthom *Allewart *Diseasa* Cypt *Antos* *Diseasa* Cypt Diseasa* Cypt *Diseasa* Cypt Diseasa* | If the entry in 3a or 3b includes the words: | 3c. WHAT KIND OF IS IT? | | <u>condit</u> | ons | : ; | 1997 - P |
| Measles "Defect" Tunc The construction of Constructing Construction of Construction of Constructin | Asthma "Ailment" "Disease" Cyst "Attack" "Disorder" Growth "Candition" "Trouble" | | | Acciden First i code Require | r njury ed | Yes O Yes O | No O No O |
| Iumor Other Acc. O For ALLERGY OR STROKE, Ask: 34. HOW DOES THE ALLERGY (STROKE) AFFECT HIM? IC or dum, code. For conditions on Good D-3 and for any entry that facibles the work: 38. WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED? Person drys of disobility V Abscess Cyst Porolysis RA. V RA. V Abscess Cyst Porolysis Ströp THE FOLLOPINC DETAIL: 2Wks. B.D. V Bleeding Infection Tume Baskull, scolp, foce 2Wks. B.D. V Block cick Information Wark Correr Number of polsy V Correr Number of polsy Armshoulder, upper, lebow, lower, wrist, hond; ore or both B.D. V Block cick Indentify polsy Parts 2 years-dak ds S. WAS A CAR, TRICK, BUS OR UPINES V Ab DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN DURING THE During post 2 years-dak ds S. Wark Note VERDIC E Yea No O O Ab WHAN IDI THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN DURING THE During post 2 years-dak ds S. WAS A CAR, TRICK, BUS OR UPINE, WAS A | Measles "Defect" | | | nospire | 1120110 | T.M.s. | Cth. |
| Acted accelerations on Card B-3 and for any entry Initial facilities are sound a | For ALLERGY OR STROKE, Ask: | 3d. HOW DOES THE ALLERGY (STR | ROKE) AFFECT HIM? | Other Ad | | 0 | 0 |
| For conditions on Card B-2 and for any entry bit includes the work: ib. WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED? Person days of disability v Abscess Cyst Porolysis R.A.; 0 Abscess Cyst Sore v R.A.; 0 Includes Growth Sore v R.A.; 0 Bidedeling Infection Tunor Bidedeling Infection Sore v Bided close Infection Tunor Bock Bock V V Boild Neuritis Weckness Ark for or eye, one or both Hod,, upper, middle, lower V Notify V Concer Neuritis Weckness Doring to zero and to not or both Hod,, upper, middle, lower V Notify V Ash Did He ACCIDENT HAPPEN DURING THE Doring to zero's and to set or both Compo or both Doring to zero's and to set or both B.D.; V Ash Did THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN DURING THE Doring to zero's and to set or both Compo or both B.D.; V Notify Notify Ash Did THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN DURING THE Doring to zero's and to set or the compo or both Did to zero's and to zer | | | | IC or du code. | m | | n Bac ^{Tar} |
| Abscess Cyst Porolysis Absceles Cyst Porolysis Hendedlein Hencerbage Sereenss Bleeding Information Tumor Block clot Information User 6 Block clot Information User 6 Bold Neuroligia Mask Concer Neuroligia Mask Concer Neurifis Weak berge Bold Neuroprint Concer Sereer Pain | For conditions on Card B-2 and for any entry | 38. WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS | AFFECTED? | Person | lays of | disability | v |
| Tenddochen Hemorrhoge Hemorrhoge Sareness (Infection Adv: Adv: Adv: Adv: Bleding Bleding Blod clet Hemorrhoge Adv: Adv: Hemorrhoge Book 2Wes. Ear or eyeone or both Hedo Book 2Wes. B.D. } B.D. } Biol Information Book Neurolis Weak Adv: Hemorrhoge Book Adv: Hemorrhoge Armboulder, upper elbow, lower, wrist, hemol grape elbow, lower, onkle, foor; one or both Designed Book T.L. } O Biol Information Pelsy FILL QUESTIONS 4-9 FOR ALL ACCIDENTS OR INIURIES Armboulder, upper elbow, lower, wrist, new or both 12 Months No. Caus? V A.DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPENT Enter math and year; mark one bors D 2 veeks - 3 months 3 - 12 months 6a.WAS A CAR, TRUCK, BUS, OR OTHER MOTOR VEHICLE INVOLVED IN THE Veek before 2 veeks - 3 months 3 - 12 months No. Caus? V Month Year Do the ACCIDENT HAPPENY Enter math and year; mark one bors D - 2 veeks - 3 months 3 - 12 months 6a.WAS A CAR, TRUCK, BUS, OR OTHER MOTOR VEHICLE IN NAV WAY V Month Year D - 2 veers - 3 months 3 - 12 months 0 O O O O Month Year Service Adverter of the ACCIDENT HAPPENY Enter weak Non difference - 100 The ACCIDENT HAPPENY Month Year Non differ | Abscess Cyst Paralysis | | | | R.A. } | | · . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Bleddig inflormation Tumor (/, inflormation Ulcer inflormation) Let or eyeone or both Bold of inflormation Ulcer inflormation | headache) Hemorrhage Soreness | SHOW THE FOLLOWING DETAI | L: | 2Wks. | B.D. } | : | • • • • |
| Diod clob Initiality (Concer Neuroligity (Weak Boil Neuroligity (Weak Bock Specify plan Concer Neuroligity (Meak Bock Specify plane Concer Parts Dering post 2 years - Ask 45 Specify plane At. DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN DURING THE During post 2 years - Ask 45 Sa. WAS A CAR, TRUCK, BUS, OR OTHER Nocclust V Ab. WHEN DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN During post 2 years - Ask 45 Sa. WAS NORE THAN OWE VEHICLE Veak Nocclust V Ab. WHEN DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN PER During post 2 years - Ask 46 Sa. AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN? Sa. AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT WHAT PART OF THE BODY WAS HURT? Veak 1 2 years Nocclust Veak 1 2 years Veak 1 2 years Nocclust Veak 1 years Nocclust Veak 1 y | Bleeding Infection Tumor / | Ear or eyeone or both | · | | | | Underó V |
| Concer Neuritis Weakness Armshoulder, upper, place, lower, wrist, houlder, upper, lower, wrist, lower, write, lower, | Boil Neuralgia Weak | Backupper, middle, | ace Iower | | т. 1. 3 | | 0 0 |
| Comps (except Pain mensivel) Palay Legbip, one of both one of | Cancer Neuritis Weakness | Armshoulder, uppe | er, elbow, lower, wrist, | | | | |
| One or both Manths B.D. FILL QUESTIONS 4-# FOR ALL ACCIDENTS OR INJURIES 44. DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN DURING NET During post 2 years-Ge to 5a 5a MAS A CAR, TRUCK, BUS, OR OTHER PAST 2 YEARS OR BEFORE THAT TIME? Defore 2 years-Ge to 5a Sa MOOTO VEHICLE INVOLVED IN THE Ve Notice of V Ab. WHEN DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN? Exter month and year; mark are box D. Was MORE THAN ONE VEHICLE Ve No No Month Year Dist week No O O O O Month Year Dist week No No No No No No Month Year Dist veek No O O O O O Month Year Dist veek No No No No No No No No Sa. AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT WHAT PART OF THE BODY WAS HURT? No A borefade lower/ O O O O No WHAT KIND OF INJURY WAS IT? Nind of injury(injuries) Specify place Seedify place entered lower e | menstrual) Palsy | Leghip, upper, kni | ee, lower, ankle, foot; | 12 | , | | v |
| 4a. DID THE ACCIDENT HE Counting post 2 years - 6a to 5a 4b. WHEN DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN? Enter month and years much and years and the box 1 0 was a content of the accidents or infuries: 1 0 was a content of the accidents or infuries: 1 1 2 weak for all accidents or infuries: 3a. AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT WHAT PART OF THE BODY WAS HURT? WHAT KIND OF INJURY WAS IT? ANTTHING ELSE? Part(s) of body If accident happend BEFORE 3 months, sb.; b, WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? HOW IS HIS AFFECTED? Part(s) of body Part(s) of body <tr< td=""><td></td><td>one or both</td><td></td><td>Months</td><td>B.D. ;</td><td></td><td></td></tr<> | | one or both | | Months | B.D. ; | | |
| PAST 2 YEARS OR BEFORE THAT TIME Doting Jost 2 years of a base 4b. WHEN DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN? Entermonts and year mark one bas Defree 2 years of a base Month Year 2 Years one base Defree 2 years of a base Month Year 2 weeks - 3 months 3 - 12 months 3 - 12 months 3 - 12 months At for all accidents or injuries: 3 - 12 months At for all accidents or injuries: 0 0 0 0 At ther TIME OF THE ACCIDENT WATP PART OF THE BODY WAS HURT? 0 0 0 0 WHAT KIND OF INJURY WAS IT? ANYTHING ELSE? Part(s) of bady Kind of injury(injuries) 5. WAS — AT WORK AT HIS JOB OR Uder 17 While in Uder 17 While in Mark are are acceled any encidence are informed performed. V V MAT THE TUP C THE ACCIDENT MAPPEN? 0 0 0 VI receivent degrade defects 0 MAT HAT TO F THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? 0 HOW IS HIS — AFFECTED? 0 Part(s) of body Present effects VI receivent defects Vertice VI receivent defects Vertice VI receivent defects 0 0 VI receivent defec | FILL QUESTIONS 48 | During orst 2 warse Ach 44 | 6a, WAS A CAR, TRUCK, BU | <u>).</u> S. or othi | R | | |
| 4b. WHEN DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN? Enter maniful and year; mark one box Lost week Accident in ANY WAY? C C C Month Year Lost week No No No Month Year 2 weeks - 3 months S No V Ark for all accidents or injurizes: 3 - 12 months C O O Sa. AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT WHAT PART OF THE BODY WAS HURT? WHAT KIND OF INJURY WAS IT? An torefacilate meter) O O WHAT KIND OF GLURY WAS IT? Ant of injury(injuries) 7. WHERE DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN? An torefacilate meter) O O Jf eccident Appened BEFORE 3 months, ack: Specify place Specify place Store facilitate meter) O O O WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? NMAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? No et time Armed Forces V V V V V V Port(s) of body Present effects O O O O O O V V Building the specified to the s | PAST 2 YEARS OR BEFORE THAT TIME? | Before 2 years-Go to 5a | MOTOR VEHICLE INV | OLVED IN | THE | Yat | No-Ge 107 V |
| Month Year C. Stastweek No Week before 2 weeks - 3 months - | 4b. WHEN DID THE ACCIDENT HAPPEN? Enter m | onth and year; mark one box | ACCIDENT IN ANY W | AY? | | | |
| 2 weeks -3 months 2 weeks -3 months 1 - 2 years | Month Year | Lost week | INVOLVED? | CHICLE | | Yes Q | Nº O |
| Ask for all accidents or injuries: 0 | | 2 weeks - 3 months | C. WAS IT (EITHER ONE) M | OVING AT | | Yes | No V |
| Ask for all accidents or injurises Sa. AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT WHAT PART OF THE BODY WAS HURT? WHAT KIND OF INJURY WAS IT? ANYTHING ELSE? Part(s) of body Kind of injury(injuries) Specify place Street and high-ory (tackies reakery) | | 1 - 2 years | THE TIME? | | | 0 | 0 0 |
| WHAT KIND OF INJURY WAS IT? ANYTHING ELSE? Part(s) of body Kind of injury(injuries) Specify place Steen and high-roy (tackdor seekery) | 5a. AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT WHAT PAR | T OF THE BODY WAS HURT? | 7. WHERE DID THE ACCIU | ENTHAPPE | :N? | As home (inside house) | 0 |
| Part(s) of body Nind of injury(injuries) Idurts of body Part(s) of body Place of recents of parties) O If accident happened BEFORE 3 months, ask: Sb, WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? HOW IS HIS AFFECTED? Vo Part(s) of body Present effects Part(s) of body Present effects Part(s) of body Present effects Vo So to the construction of the con | WHAT KIND OF INJURY WAS IT? ANYTHI | NG ELSE? | Specify place | | | At home (adjacent premi Street and hisboay (inc | 1411 |
| Industrial pool fractate printer O Ploce of recreation and sport (are stated) O Ploce of recreation and sport (are stated) V If accident happened BEFORE 3 months, ask: Sb, WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? HOW IS HIS AFFECTED? V Part(s) of body Present effects Part(s) of body Present effects Footnotes V | Part(s) of body Kina | of Injury(Injuries) | | | | Form | |
| Place of recreation and sports (as readed). Place of recreation and sports (as readed). Place of recreation and sports (as readed). V Recreating place of recreating place of recreating place of readed. V Recreating place of recreating place of recreating place of readed. V Recreating place of recreating place of readed. V Recreating place of recreating place of readed. V Recreating place of read . | | | | | | School (Includes school | (premises) 0 |
| If accident happened BEFORE 3 months, ask: Sh, WAS AT WORK AT HIS JOB OR Under 17 While in If accident happened BEFORE 3 months, ask: Sh, WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? 0 | | | | | | Place of recreation and - Cther (specify place whe | sports (not school) + O re accident happened) |
| If accident happened BEFORE 3 months, ask: 8. WAS AT WORK AT HIS JOB OR Ucter 17 Willie in If accident happened BEFORE 3 months, ask: 8. WAS AT WORK AT HIS JOB OR Ucter 17 Willie in Sb, WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NOW? BUSINESS WHEN THE ACCIDENT Yes No at time Armed Forces V HOW IS HIS AFFECTED? Present effects 0 0 0 0 0 0 Part(s) of body Present effects - | | | | | | | v 0 |
| If accident Appened BEFORE 3 months, ask: 000000000000000000000000000000000000 | | | 8. WAS AT WORK AT H | IS JOB OR | | Unde Yes No at I | r 17 While in ime Armed Forces V |
| NUM IS NS ~~ APPECIED! Part(s) of body Present effects | If accident happened BEFORE 3 months, ask: 5b. WHAT PART OF THE BODY IS AFFECTED NO | W? | HAPPENED? | | | 000 | > 0 0 |
| · ■ 00000000 · ■ 000000 | Rum is nis AFEGIEU? | Present effects | 1 | | | | |
| | rontay or body | ricouri diletta | | | | | |
| •■ 5600000 | | | | | | | |
| | ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· | | | F | | | |
| | | | <u> </u> | | • | 0.01.00 | 985 |

| CONDITION (Con'd.) | REFER RESPONDENT TO TWO-WEEK CALENDAR FOR QUESTIONS 9-14 | | | | |
|---|---|--------------|--|--|---|
| Ask question 9a for all conditions. | 9a. LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE DID HIS CAUSE HIM TO CUT DOWN ON THE THINGS HE USUALLY DOES? | | Yes | Mii - Ge is 14e | v o |
| | b. DID HE HAVE TO CUT DOWN FOR AS MUCH AS A DAY? | | Yes O | Na - Go so 1 i s O | V Ç |
| Ask questions 10 and 11 if "Yes" marked in question 95. | 10. HOW MANY DAYS DID HE HAVE TO CUT DOWN DURING THAT TWO WEEK PERIOD? Write in and mark | Days { | 2 I 1 I | · · | V © |
| | 11. DURING THAT TWO WEEK PERIOD, HOW MANY DAYS DID HIS KEEP HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST Write in OF THE DAY? | Days { | | Nore O | V Ú |
| Ask question 12 if person is 6-16 years old. | 12. HOW MANY DAYS DID HIS KEEP HIM FROM SCHOOL DURING THAT TWO WEEK PERIOD? | Days { | | Under & Nover O O J | v O |
| Ask question 13 if person is 17 years old or over. | 13. HOW MANY DAYS DID HIS KEEP HIM FROM WORK DURING THAT TWO WEEK PERIOD? (For females odd) Write in NOT COUNTING WORK AROUND THE HOUSE? and mark | Days { | | None O | v 0 |
| Ask question 14 for all conditions. | 14a. WHEN DID HE FIRST NOTICE HIS? WAS IT DURING THE PAST 3 MONTHS OR BEFORE THAT TIME? | | During 3 mos. O | Before 3 mos Ge | 10 IS V O |
| | b. DID HE FIRST NOTICE IT DURING THE PAST TWO WEEKS OR BEFORE THAT TIME? | | Pasi 2 nks. | Before 2 wits Go | ₩16 V 0 |
| | c. WHICH WEEK, LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? | | Last week | Weak before | ۷ ث |
| 1.1 | | | 212 | | |
| Ask question 15 only if condition was first noticed "Before 3 months." | 15. DID FIRST NOTICE IT DURING THE PAST 12 MONTHS OR BEFORE THAT TIME? | | 3-12 mos. | Defore 12 mos | . • С |
| Ask for person 6 years old or over for whom an eye condition | Not an eye condition Not first eye condition Under 6 | | Yes · Ask 166 | Na -Onit 16k | |
| or vision problem (including | 16a. CAN SEE WELL ENOUGH TO READ ORDINARY NEWSPAPER PRINT WITH GLASSES | 7 | 0 | 0 | |
| cataracts and glaucomat has been reported. | b. CAN SEE WELL ENOUGH TO RECOGNIZE A FRIEND WALKING ON THE OTHER | | | | |
| occur reported | SIDE OF THE STREET? | | Yes-Onit 160 O | No- <i>i ek 16e</i> O | |
| | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? | | Yes-Onit 160 O Great deal | No- <i>Ask 16e</i> O Some | Hord any orrea |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B. OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS." ASK O. 17: OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B | B. | Yes-Unit 160 O Great deal | No- <i>dak 16e</i> O Some O | Hord tiny or rea |
| AA: IF TRIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE PAST</u> | B. | Yes-Omit 160 O Great deal | No- <i>Ask 16e</i> O Some O N tore 8 | Hord dry or rea O |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "Mone." | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE PAST</u> <u>12 MONTHS</u> HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? W rite in and mark | B. | Yes-Omit lée | No-Ask Ide O Some O N Sout B | Hord any or res 0 |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more doys in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 WONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE PAST</u> <u>12 MONTHS</u> HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? D. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? | B. Days{ | Yes-Onit lee | No-Juli Je O Some N Lut A Us-Gate B O | Hordi any or res O |
| AA: IF TRIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 WONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE PAST <u>12 MONTHS</u> HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? b. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Write in and mark | B. Days { | Yes-Onic Ife | No-Aik Ide Some N to t Ai N to t Bi No-Gate BB | Hord dny or rest 8 V O |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LAST | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE PAST 12 MONTHS</u> HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? D. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Vess - Ask 18-21 if person has "1" or more conditions past AA | B. Days { | Yes Joint Her Original Action Original Action Yes Original Action Yes Original Action Yes Original Action Yes | No-Aik Ide | Hord) dry or res 0 |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more doys in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LAST condition for this person? Show Gard D. E. R. or G. | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 NONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE PAST</u> <u>12 MONTHS</u> HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? b. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Vrite in and mark Yes Ask 18-21 if person has "1" or more conditions past AA No Go to next condition 18. PLEASE LOOK AT EACH STATEMENT ON THIS CARD (CARD D. E. F. G). THEN | B. Days { | Yes Joint He O Great deal O Yes O Yes O | NoAik Ide O Some O N Sure J N NoC J N N N N N N N N N N N N N | Hord or ror of s V |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more doys in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LASF condition for this person? Show Card D, E, F, or G, as appropriate based on activity statue or age. | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM B 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE FAST 12. MONTHS, HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? D. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Vrite in ond mark Yes - Ask 18-21 if person has "1" or more conditions past AA No Go to next condition 18. PLEASE LOOK AT EACH STATEMENT ON THIS CARD (CARD D, E, F, G). THEN TELL ME WHICH STATEMENT FITS BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH. Mark statement number | B. Days { | Yes Joint Her Great deal | NoAik Ide Some N South All N South All N South All N South All N South All South All Sout | Hodda any arves ar |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LAST condition for this person? Show Card D. E. F. or G, as appropriate based on activity status or ags. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 NONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM L 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE PAST</u> <u>12 MONTHS</u> HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? b. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? V rite in ond mark Yes Ask 18-31 if person has "1" or more conditions past AA No Go to next condition 18. PLEASE LOOK AT EACH STATEMENT ON THIS CARD (CARD D, E, F, G). THEN TELL ME WHICH STATEMENT FITS BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH. Mark statement number 19. IS THIS BECAUSE OF ANY OF THE CONDITIONS YOU HAVE TOLD ME ABOUT? | B. Days { | Yes Joint He O Great deal O Yes O 1 1 1 0 4 1 1 0 0 4 1 0 0 0 | No. 418 160 Some N 446 6 41 10-66 46 35 N 2 3 4-66 46 35 C 0 NGTON USE | Hadda day a ref O O O O O V O |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LASF condition for this person? Show Card D, E, F, or G, as appropriate based on activity status or age. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: If 4 marked in 18 go to 20. | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM E 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE FAST</u> 12 MONTHS HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? D. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Vrite in and mark Yets - Ask 18-21 if person has "1" or more conditions past AA No Go to next condition 18. PLEASE LOOK AT EACH STATEMENT ON THIS CARD (CARD D, E, F, G). THEN TELL ME WHICH STATEMENT FITS BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH. Mark statement number 19. IS THIS BECAUSE OF ANY OF THE CONDITIONS YOU HAVE TOLD ME ABOUT? Yets WHICH? | B. Days { | Yes Joint Her Original Area Original Area Yes Original Yes Original Yes Original Yes O | No-Aik Ide Some No- No- No- No- No- No- No- No- | Hadd of v of v of v of v of v of v of v of v |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LAST condition for this person? Show Card D. E. F. or G, as appropriate based on activity status or ags. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: If 4 marked in 18 go to 20. | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 NONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM E 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS <u>DURING THE PAST</u> 12 MONTHS HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? D. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Vrite in ond mark ON | B. Days { | Yes Joint He Great deal Yes O Yes O Yes O Age | No-Aris 160 Some N Source 21 N | Hadia any any any any any any any any any an |
| Ak: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LASF condition for this person? Show Card D, E, F, or G, as appropriate based on activity status or age. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 WONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM E 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE PAST <u>12 MONTHS</u> HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? D. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? V rite in ond mark Yes - Ask 18-21 if person has "1" or more conditions past AA No - Go to next condition 18. PLEASE LOOK AT EACH STATEMENT ON THIS CARD (CARD D, E, F, G). THEN TELL ME WHICH STATEMENT FITS BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH. Mark statement number 19. IS THIS BECAUSE OF ANY OF THE CONDITIONS YOU HAVE TOLD ME ABOUT? Yes -> WHICH? | B. Doys { | Yes Joint He O General deal O Yes O 1 O WASHI Yes O Age O | No-dak lee Some No-call lee No-call lee No-coll lee | Hodd of the second seco |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more doys in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LASF condition for this person? Show Card D. E. F. or G, as appropriate based on activity status or age. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 WONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM E 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE PAST 12 MONTHS HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? b. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Vite in ond mark ON | B. Days { | Yes Joint He Great deal Great deal Yes O Yes O Age O I O | No-Aik lee Some N Source Al 189-Ge to 85 2 3 4-Ge to 85 N 2 3 4-Ge to 85 N Control 199 N Control 199 Control 199 N Control 199 Control 199 Contr | Hodding any o v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LAST condition for this person? Show Card D, E, F, or G, as appropriate based on activity status or age. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: If 4 marked in 18 go to 20. If 1, 2, 3, 4, or 5 marked in 20. ask: | SIDE OF THE STREET? c. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM E 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE PAST 12. MONTHS HAS HS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? b. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? c. HOW MANY? Prite in and mark | B. Days { | Yes Joint Her Great deal Great deal Yes O 1 Yes O Age O WASHI | No-Aris 160 Some N 2005 C 4 N 2005 C 4 NO-Gene 85 NO-Gene 85 NO-Ge | Hodd area |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LASF condition for this person? Show Card D, E, F, or G, as appropriate based on activity status or age. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: If 4 marked in 18 go to 20: If 1, 2, 3, 4, or 5 marked in 20, ask: | SIDE OF THE STREET? c. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 MONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM E 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE FAST 12. MONTHS HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? b. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? c. HOW MANY? WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? c. HOW MANY? Were ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? c. HOW MANY? Were ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? c. HOW MANY? Write in ond mark Statement Provide the Statement on THIS CARD (CARD D, E, F, G). THEN TELL ME WHICH STATEMENT FITS - BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH. Mark statement number 19. IS THIS BECAUSE OF ANY OF THE CONDITIONS YOU HAVE TOLD ME ABOUT? State Cook AT THE BLUE CARD, CARD H. WHICH ONE OF THOSE STATEMENTS FITS - BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH? Mark statement number 20. PLEASE LOOK AT THE BLUE CARD, CARD H. WHICH ONE OF THOSE STATEMENTS FITS - BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH? Mark statement number 21. IS THIS BECAUSE OF ANY OF THE CONDITIONS YOU HAVE TOLD ME ABOUT? 21. IS THIS BECAUSE OF ANY OF THE CONDI | B. Days { | Yes Joint Her | No-Aris 160 Some N Source A N Source A No-Gene B No-Gene B No-Gene B No-Gene B No-Gene C No-Gene | Hodana any any any any any any any any any |
| AA: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LASF condition for this person? Show Card D. E. F. or G, as appropriate based on activity status or age. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: If 4 marked in 18 go to 20. If 1, 2, 3, 4, or 5 marked in 20, ask: If 6 marked, omit 21 and go to next person. | SIDE OF THE STREET? C. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 WONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE GO TO ITEM E 172. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE PAST 12 MONTHS HAS HIS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? D. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? C. HOW MANY? Vite in ond mark ON | B. Days { | Yes Joint He Great deal Yes O Yes O Age O Age O Age | No-Aik lee Some Some N Sout A 2 3 4-Go to 37 N Sout A 2 3 4-Go to 37 N Sout A N Southard South | Hodding a rive o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o |
| Ak: IF THIS IS A CONDITION Ask question 17b if "1" or more days in question 17a and question 11 is blank or marked "None." BB: Is this the LAST condition for this person? Show Card D, E, F, or G, as appropriate based on activity status or age. If 1, 2, or 3 marked in 18 ask: If 4 marked in 18 go to 20. If 1, 2, 3, 4, or 5 marked in 20, ask: | SIDE OF THE STREET? c. HOW MUCH TROUBLE WOULD YOU SAY THAT HAS IN SEEING: A GREAT DEAL, SOME, OR HARDLY ANY AT ALL? ON CARD A OR B, OR STARTED "BEFORE 3 WONTHS," ASK Q. 17; OTHERWISE CO TO ITEM E 17a. ABOUT HOW MANY DAYS DURING THE PAST 12. MONTHS HAS HS KEPT HIM IN BED ALL OR MOST OF THE DAY? b. WERE ANY OF THESE DAYS DURING LAST WEEK OR THE WEEK BEFORE? c. HOW MANY? WEEK OR THE WEEK DEFORE? c. HOW MANY? WEAT Condition 18. PLEASE LOOK AT EACH STATEMENT ON THIS CARD (CARD D, E, F, G). THEN TELL ME WHICH STATEMENT FITS BEST IN TERMS OF HEALTH? More statement number [] IS THIS BECAUSE OF ANY OF THE CONDITIONS YOU HAVE TOLD ME ABOUT? [] Yes → WHICH? C. PLEASE LOOK AT THE BLUE CARD, CARD H. WHICH ONE OF THOSE STATEMENTS FITS BEST IN TERMS O | B. Days { | Yes Joint He General decil General decil Yes O 1 Age O WASHI Yes O Age O Age O O | No - 412 160 Some ○ No - 64 No - 74 No - 74 No - 74 No - 74 No - 74 No - 7 | No.41 A res A |

_____0 0 0_____

_

OUTLINE OF REPORT SERIES FOR VITAL AND HEALTH STATISTICS

Public Health Service Publication No. 1000

- Series 1. Programs and collection procedures.—Reports which describe the general programs of the National Center for Health Statistics and its offices and divisions, data collection methods used, definitions, and other material necessary for understanding the data.
- Series 2. Data evaluation and methods research.—Studies of new statistical methodology including: experimental tests of new survey methods, studies of vital statistics collection methods, new analytical techniques, objective evaluations of reliability of collected data, contributions to statistical theory.
- Series 3. Analytical studies.—Reports presenting analytical or interpretive studies based on vital and health statistics, carrying the analysis further than the expository types of reports in the other series.
- Series 4. Documents and committee reports.—Final reports of major committees concerned with vital and health statistics, and documents such as recommended model vital registration laws and revised birth and death certificates.
- Series 10. Data from the Health Interview Survey.—Statistics on illness, accidental injuries, disability, use of hospital, medical, dental, and other services, and other health-related topics, based on data collected in a continuing national household interview survey.
- Series 11. Data from the Health Examination Survey.—Data from direct examination, testing, and measurement of national samples of the population provide the basis for two types of reports: (1) estimates of the medically defined prevalence of specific diseases in the United States and the distributions of the population with respect to physical, physiological, and psychological characteristics; and (2) analysis of relationships among the various measurements without reference to an explicit finite universe of persons.
- Series 12. Data from the Institutional Population Surveys.—Statistics relating to the health characteristics of persons in institutions, and on medical, nursing, and personal care received, based on national samples of establishments providing these services and samples of the residents or patients.
- Series 13. Data from the Hospital Discharge Survey.—Statistics relating to discharged patients in short-stay hospitals, based on a sample of patient records in a national sample of hospitals.
- Series 14. Data on health resources: manpower and facilities.—Statistics on the numbers, geographic distribution, and characteristics of health resources including physicians, dentists, nurses, other health manpower occupations, hospitals, nursing homes, and outpatient and other inpatient facilities.
- Series 20. Data on mortality.—Various statistics on mortality other than as included in annual or monthly reports—special analyses by cause of death, age, and other demographic variables, also geographic and time series analyses.
- Series 21. Data on natality, marriage, and divorce. Various statistics on natality, marriage, and divorce other than as included in annual or monthly reports—special analyses by demographic variables, also geographic and time series analyses, studies of fertility.
- Series 22. Data from the National Natality and Mortality Surveys. --Statistics on characteristics of births and deaths not available from the vital records, based on sample surveys stemming from these records, including such topics as mortality by socioeconomic class, medical experience in the last year of life, characteristics of pregnancy, etc.

For a list of titles of reports published in these series, write to: Office of Information

National Center for Health Statistics U.S. Public Health Service Washington, D.C. 20201